
London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham

Licensing Sub-Committee
Agenda

Wednesday 22 May 2019 
11.00 am

Council Chamber - Hammersmith Town Hall

MEMBERSHIP

Administration: Opposition:
Councillor Fiona Smith
Councillor Wesley Harcourt

Councillor Frances Stainton

CONTACT OFFICER: Amrita Gill
Committee Co-ordinator
Governance and Scrutiny
: 020 8735 2094
E-mail: amrita.gill@lbhf.gov.uk

Public Notice

Members of the press and public are welcome to attend this and all other Council 
meetings. Should exempt information need to be discussed then the committee will 
pass a resolution requiring members of the press and public to leave.

Speaking at Licensing meetings is restricted to those who have submitted a 
representation and registered to speak.

The open part of this agenda is available for public inspection at the Town Hall and 
may be viewed on the Council’s website www.lbhf.gov.uk/councillors-and-democracy

A loop system for hearing impairment is provided, along with disabled access to the 
building.

Date Issued: 14 May 2019

http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/councillors-and-democracy


London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham

Licensing Sub-Committee Agenda
22 May 2019

Item Pages

1.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
If a Councillor has a disclosable pecuniary interest in a particular item, 
whether or not it is entered in the Authority’s register of interests, or 
any other significant interest which they consider should be declared in 
the public interest, they should declare the existence and, unless it is a 
sensitive interest as defined in the Member Code of Conduct, the 
nature of the interest at the commencement of the consideration of that 
item or as soon as it becomes apparent.

At meetings where members of the public are allowed to be in 
attendance and speak, any Councillor with a disclosable pecuniary 
interest or other significant interest may also make representations, 
give evidence or answer questions about the matter. The Councillor 
must then withdraw immediately from the meeting before the matter is 
discussed and any vote taken. 

Where Members of the public are not allowed to be in attendance and 
speak, then the Councillor with a disclosable pecuniary interest should 
withdraw from the meeting whilst the matter is under consideration. 
Councillors who have declared other significant interests should also 
withdraw from the meeting if they consider their continued participation 
in the matter would not be reasonable in the circumstances and may 
give rise to a perception of a conflict of interest.

Councillors are not obliged to withdraw from the meeting where a 
dispensation to that effect has been obtained from the Audit, Pensions 
and Standards Committee.

3.  ORIENTS SPA 1 NORTH END ROAD W14 8ST 4 - 77

4.  ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 78 - 85
Additional information which includes:

- Correspondence regarding resident concerns
- Fire Authority email response
- Email from Environmental Health Officer Karen Ashdown
- Email from Councillor Rebecca Harvey supporting resident’s 

concerns

5.  EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS
The Committee is invited to resolve, under Section 100A (4) of the 
Local Government Act 1972, that the public and press be excluded 



from the meeting during the consideration of the following items of 
business, on the grounds that they contain the likely disclosure of 
exempt information, as defined in paragraph 1 of Schedule 12A of the 
said Act, and that the public interest in maintaining the exemption 
currently outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information.

6.  EXEMPT APPENDIX G AND POLICE STATEMENT



             LONDON BOROUGH OF HAMMERSMITH AND FULHAM

MASSAGE AND SPECIAL TREATMENT LICENSING

REPORT BY ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH - COMMERCIAL SERVICES 
  UNDER DELEGATED AUTHORITY 

APPLICATION FOR RENEWAL OF A LICENCE FOR 
ORIENTS SPA, 1 NORTH END ROAD, LONDON W14 8ST

The purpose of this report is to consider the application for
renewal of a Special Treatments Licence in respect of

Orients Spa, 1 North End Road, London W14 8ST

Where any premises within the Borough are used for treatment of persons 
requiring massage, manicure, acupuncture, tattooing, cosmetic piercing, 
chiropody, light, electric, or other similar special treatments, they are a Special 
Treatment Premises within the meaning of the London Local Authorities Act 1991 
Part II, (the Act) and they may not be used for Special Treatment unless they 
are so licensed by the Council.

Section 7(4) of the Act requires an applicant for the grant, renewal or variation 
of a licence to furnish such particulars and give such notices, as the Council may 
prescribe, whilst section 7(6) requires an applicant for the grant, renewal or 
transfer of a licence to pay a reasonable fee determined by the Council. 

The Council has prescribed Standard Conditions which are applicable to all 
Special Treatment Licences, a copy of which is attached as Appendix J.  
Additional conditions may be imposed on a licence when appropriate.  

The Council may refuse to grant, renew or transfer a licence on a number of 
grounds, which are specified in section 8 of the Act attached as Appendix I.

The Council may refuse to grant or renew the licence of any premises, may 
revoke any licence already made, and may impose additional conditions on the 
licence.

The applicant has been notified of the date and time of this hearing and their 
right of appearing before and being heard by the Committee.

Orients Spa 1 North End Road W14 8ST

This application has been made by Ms Siu Chuk Au, the sole Director of Orient 
Spa Ltd, for a renewal of licence for Massage and Special Treatments for the 

Page 4

Agenda Item 3



premises known as Orients Spa 1 North End Road London W14 8ST.  Ms Siu 
Chuk Au has declared on the application form that she is the business owner, is 
personally responsible for the conduct and management of the premises and that 
she has read and understood the Standard Conditions.

The application is to provide Body Massage, Indian Head Massage and 
Reflexology treatments to men and women between the hours of 10am and 
9.30pm Monday to Sunday. 

The licence renewal application was signed and dated 30th November 2018.  
Payment of the renewal fee was made by card over the telephone on 3rd 
December 2018.  A copy of the application form is attached as Appendix A.

Applicants for the grant, renewal or variation of a Special Treatment Licence are 
required to notify the Police and Fire Authority of their application at the time of 
application. The applicant has not complied with this requirement.  

The applicant declared that the question on the application form of whether there 
were additional therapists providing special treatments was “Not applicable”.  
However, an unregistered therapist was found to be working during a compliance 
visit made by officers on 18th December 2018.   Documents which were 
subsequently submitted to the Council for this person included a payslip dated 
31st October 2018, indicating that person had been working at the time the 
application form was signed.  

The premises comprises on the ground floor a reception area and one 
treatment room with stairs leading down to the basement with a toilet/shower, 
two treatment rooms, a storage room and a covered outside laundry area. A 
plan of the premises is attached as Appendix B.

Background

Orients Spa has held a licence since 2016.  The licence previous to this 
application was in force until 1st December 2018.  The licence permitted Body 
Massage, Indian Head Massage and Reflexology treatments between the hours 
of 10am and 9.30pm Monday to Sunday. A copy of the 2017/18 licence is 
attached as Appendix C. 

The premises is currently continuing to operate as a massage and special 
treatment business.  The legislation states that where, before the date of expiry 
of a licence, an application has been made for its renewal or transfer, the 
licence shall be deemed to remain in force until the determination of the 
application.  

Page 5



Enforcement History

On 3rd April 2018 an enforcement visit was made by Karen Ashdown, 
Commercial Services and Police officers in relation to a report from the Police 
that sexual services were allegedly being offered at the premises. The licence 
holder was onsite.  An inspection report was left at the time of the visit and 
verbal advice given. Breaches of the licence conditions included no client 
records, unregistered therapists working and inappropriate advertising. A 
warning letter was sent out - Appendix D.  The licence holder took remedial 
action to amend window advertising and the website. 

On 18th December 2018 a compliance visit was made following receipt of the 
licence renewal application. A witness statement by Stephanie Needham, 
Commercial Services - Appendix K - lists breaches of the licence conditions 
including expired therapist exemption, an unregistered therapist working and 
no electrical safety certification were identified.  A warning letter was sent out 
- Appendix E.  

On 10th January 2019 a test purchase was conducted at the premises and it is 
reported that the operative was twice “offered, without any previous suggestion 
by [him] services of an apparent sexual nature”.  A copy of the operative’s 
witness statement is at Appendix F. 

The licence holder responded to the 18th December compliance visit with a 
letter dated 9th January 2019, received at the council on 15th January 2019.   
Enclosed with a response to the identified non-compliances were partially 
completed application forms to renew three therapist exemptions.  The 
required fee for processing exemptions has not been paid. The licence holder 
reported that the unregistered therapist (Ms Wa) who was found to be not 
decently and appropriately attired on 18th December had been dismissed and 
her last working day was on 13th January 2019.  

In order to be satisfied that the lighting, equipment and fire safety at the 
premises is adequate (points (f), (h), (i) and (k) Appendix I) the Council requires 
annual certification confirming that the main electrical installation, emergency 
lighting, portable appliances and where applicable the gas installation and gas 
appliances are in a satisfactory condition. Details of annual safety checks were 
not completed on the application form (Appendix A).  Following the 18th 
December 2018 compliance visit evidence of portable appliance testing was 
submitted on 23rd December.  This is dated 20th December 2018.  Despite further 
requests to the licence holder, submission of the required evidence that the 
electrical installation is safe remains outstanding.  

Page 6



Public liability insurance and employer’s liability insurance is required (Standard 
Conditions Part 2 (2) (d)).  A copy of the buildings, contents and public liability 
insurance package was sent shows the policy started on 9th January 2019.   

An extensive social networking and online search report dated 22nd January 
2019 - Appendix G - will be circulated to committee members only 
separately to the report. Due to the substantial amount of confidential 
information included in this evidence, the full text of the supporting evidence 
will not be publicly available.  This report includes posts on a forum site 
dedicated to reviews of ‘punting’ at massage parlours.  Reviews of services 
received at Orients Spa included treatments paid for which are of a sexual 
nature.  These posts are dated between July 2018 and October 2018, and the 
latest dated 17th January 2019. The report states that one Google review post, 
dated ‘a year ago’, “indicates that treatments may have been of a legitimate 
nature”. However, it is noted that the author of that post has the same name 
as a person who signed off an email to the Council as ‘friend and advisor’ on 
5th January 2019. 

On 30th January 2019 a revisit was made to the premises.  Breaches of 
conditions were found and are listed in the letter to the licence holder of 6th 
February 2019 - Appendix H.   Of note is that since the visit on 18th December 
2018 only one or none client cards had been completed for each day and the 
information was incomplete. 

On 6th February 2018 Karen Ashdown sent a letter - Appendix H - advising 
that this renewal application would be taken to the Licensing Sub-Committee for 
determination. During a subsequent telephone conversation with ‘Mary’ on 8th 
February 2018 Karen Ashdown explained the non-compliances that remained 
outstanding.   Mary said that clients do not like to fill in client cards.  Mary said 
she had misgivings about the hiring of the therapist working unregistered on 18th 
December 2018 (Ms Wa), but although she runs the business on a day to day 
basis and acts as a translator at the bank, she does not make employment 
decisions. Mary said that this therapist may have worked until 23rd January 2019. 
Mary confirmed that the three therapists named on the application form as 
providing Tui-Na (Chinese massage) treatments: Siu Chuk Au (the applicant), 
Yan Jiao Yi and Mei San Sam are the main employees.  The exemptions 
previously granted for these three therapists are no longer valid.  Evidence of 
current membership of Independent Professional Therapists International was 
sent in on 9th January 2018 but the application forms were incomplete and fees 
have not been paid for these three therapists.   Mary told Karen Ashdown that 
there are 10 staff, who work one or two days a week, to cover the long opening 
hours. 

On 13th February 2019 an email was sent to the licensee that applications for 
two therapists Qun Qi and Hai Lu could not be processed because the application 

Page 7



forms were incomplete and payment had not been made.  The fee was paid on 
14th February 2019.  A further request for the required information was made on 
11th March 2019.  The necessary information was received by post on 15th March 
2019 and the therapists were granted exemption on 19th March 2019.  

Decision by the Committee 

When considering an application, the Committee may;

1) Grant the application as applied for
2) Grant the application and attach any special conditions the Committee 

thinks fit
3) Refuse the application

The recommendation is to refuse the renewal of the licence.  The full list of the 
grounds for refusal of a licence is specified in section 8 of the Act attached as 
Appendix I.  The following grounds would be most relevant in these 
circumstances:

(c) the persons concerned or intended to be concerned in the conduct or 
management of the premises used for special treatment could be reasonably 
regarded as not being fit and proper persons to hold such a licence;

(e) the premises have been or are being improperly conducted;

(m) the applicant has failed to comply with the requirements of subsection (4) 
or (6) of section 7 [subsection (4): furnishing such particulars as the council may 
prescribe]

The Council has prescribed Standard Conditions which are applicable to all 
Special Treatment Licences, a copy of which is attached at Appendix J. Please 
note that offering sexual services at a licenced special treatment premises is a 
contravention of Part 2 (4) (b) which says:

The Licence holder and any authorised person shall ensure that no part of the 
premises is used by persons for soliciting or other immoral purposes

Part 2 (2) (e) and (f) of the Standard Conditions refer to therapist registration:

The licence holder and any authorised person shall ensure that all therapists 
carrying out special treatments are suitably trained/qualified and evidence of 
such shall be submitted to the Council for approval.  The current therapist 
registration document or a clear copy shall at all times be prominently 
displayed at the premises in a position where it can be easily read by 
customers.  

Page 8



No persons other than those holding valid Therapist Registration documents 
are permitted to carry out special treatments

and Part 2 (13)(d) states

Where a therapist is exempt under the Act then current details of their 
membership of the relevant body shall be submitted to the Council and shall 
be available at the premises at all times. 

The Act sets out grounds when a special treatment premises is exempt from 
requiring a licence which includes any premises where the special treatment is 
carried out by or under the supervision of any bona fide member of a body of 
health practitioners.  Should the Committee decide not to grant renewal of the 
licence the business could consider an application to the Council for exemption.  

Should the Committee not refuse the application to renew but chooses to grant 
the licence I would ask them to consider the addition of the following 
conditions:

o The license holder shall maintain good order on the premises and shall 
ensure that none of the following shall take place:
• indecent behaviour, including sexual intercourse.
• the offer of any sexual or other indecent service for reward or gain.
• use of any part of the premises by prostitutes, for soliciting or for 

any other immoral purposes.
• the offer or conduct of massage to persons of the opposite sex

o The duty manager shall not permit the door of any room or place in the 
establishment for the time being in use for the giving of special 
treatment to be locked during the period that the client is therein. 

o All staff shall be decently and appropriately attired at all times.
o The licence holder may authorise a responsible person to be in charge 

of the premises during opening hours. A written record of this shall be 
kept onsite ready for inspection by an authorised officer.

o The duty manager or licensee will without delay report to 
Environmental Health Commercial Services any instances of a customer 
requesting any sexual or indecent service.

o The duty manager or licensee will without delay report to 
Environmental Health Commercial Services any instances of employees 
offering or permitting or carrying out any sexual or indecent service. 

o The advertising of the business shall be conducted in an appropriate 
manner. Adverts and social media content shall be kept to a 
professional standard. No mention of a sexual nature, wording or visual 
is permitted.  If the licensee is notified by the Council in writing that it 

Page 9



objects under this rule to any advert or written material, it shall not be 
displayed or supplied. 

Karen Ashdown
Environmental Health Officer - Commercial Services

Appendices
Appendix A Application for Renewal of Special Treatment Licence 

2018-2019

Appendix B Plan of 1 North End Road W14 8ST

Appendix C Special Treatments Licence 2017/2018

Appendix D Warning letter 5th April 2018

Appendix E Warning letter 4th January 2019

Appendix F Test Purchase witness statement and exhibit

Appendix G Internet search and social media report 
[circulated separately to committee members and not 
available publicly]

Appendix H Letter 6th February 2019

Appendix I London Local Authorities Act 1991

Appendix J Standard Licensing Conditions for premises offering 
Special Treatments

Appendix K Stephanie Needham witness statement and exhibit

Officer contact: Any person wishing to inspect the above documents should 
contact Karen Ashdown, Environmental Health Commercial Services Team, 
telephone 020 8753 5200.                                          

Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17

ka23
Typewritten Text
APPENDIX B

ka23_1
Typewritten Text

ka23_2
Typewritten Text



Page 18



Page 19

ka23_3
Typewritten Text
APPENDIX C

ka23_4
Typewritten Text



London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

Environmental Health - Commercial Services Team  

PO Box 66532 

London W8 9GJ 

Tel:  020 8753 1081 

Email:    commercialservices@lbhf.gov.uk 

Web:  www.lbhf.gov.uk 

 

 

   

Orients Spa 
1 North End Spa       5th April 2018 
London          2017/01681/MST 
W14 8ST 
 

 
 
Dear Siu Chuk Au   
 
London Local Authorities Act 1991 Massage and Special Treatment Licensing 
PREMISES: Orients Spa 1 North End Road W14 8ST 

I am writing in response to the inspection I made on 3rd April 2018 to remind you of your 
responsibilities and duties as the Holder of a Massage and Special Treatment Licence.  I 
was accompanied by Police officers, and met you and Mei Teng Sam.  I left a written 
report of the main actions you are required to take.  This letter provides more detail.   

You told me that Xiao Chun Zhu and Mei San Sam are no longer working at Orients Spa. 
Our records have been updated. I was told that Yan Jiao Yi works full time but was not 
present at the time of my inspection.  You told me you work part time.  Mei Teng Sam is 
known as ‘Ci Ci’. The name Tina was written in the booking diary.   You did not know her 
real name and said she only works one day a week.   
 
You referred me to a person called Many (full name unknown) who you said is responsible 
for the business but you are the licence holder and therefore under the terms of the 
Licence you are the person responsible for compliance with the Standard Conditions at all 
times that the premises are open for business.  These legal duties are to protect the safety 
of your therapists, clients and the reputation of your business. If you do not comply with 
the licence conditions your case may be referred for consideration of legal action.   
 

In particular you should note the following conditions: 
 

• The Council may revoke or refuse to renew a licence if the premises have been or 
are being improperly conducted London Local Authorities Act 1991 Part II (8) (e) 
 

• The Licence holder and any authorised person shall ensure that no part of the 
premises is used by persons for soliciting or other immoral purposes.  Standard 
Licensing Conditions for Premises Offering Special Treatments Part 2 (4)(b) 
 

• No persons other than those holding valid Therapist Registration documents are 
permitted to carry out treatments.  Standard Licensing Conditions for Premises 
Offering Special Treatments Part 2 (2)(f) 
 

• If there is use of any premises where a licence is in force in other than in 
accordance with the terms, conditions or restrictions to which the licence is held 
then the licence holder or other person concerned in the conduct or management of 

 

Page 20

ka23_5
Typewritten Text
APPENDIX D



  

 

         Page 2 of 2 

the premises shall be guilty of an offence and liable on summary conviction to a fine 
not exceeding level 4 on the standard scale Standard Licensing Conditions for 
Premises Offering Special Treatments Part 1 (3)(c) 

 
You are required to take the following action within 14 days: 
 

1) You must remove inappropriate language used on the internet to advertise the 
business including reference to ‘lovely Oriental girls’ and ‘therapists from Japan, 
Hong King, and Malaysia and Thailand’ from Gumtree and any other websites 
advertising your business.  Advertising should focus on the quality and nature of the 
service itself rather than the physical attributes of the therapists.  
 

2) You shall remove all reference to treatments which require a licence other than 
massage, reflexology and Indian Head massage.  This includes removing reference 
to treatments such as aromatherapy and acupuncture from all websites advertising 
the business, from the business card and from the window advertising.  The 
Massage and Special Treatment Licence is issued to permit body massage, 
reflexology and Indian Head Massage only.  No other treatments are permitted to 
be offered or advertised.  
 

3) The therapists registered have only submitted certificates in the style of massage 
known as Tui Na.  Therapists are only permitted to carry out therapies which they 
have provided evidence of qualification for and that they are registered for and only 
if are permitted by the premises licence.    
 

4) Tina is not permitted to carry out massage until registered with the Council.   No 
other therapist is permitted to work unless they are registered with the council.    

 
5) Therapist registration documents must be displayed where clients can see them.  

 
6) There were no client records available.  Written client records shall be kept for a 

minimum of three years and available at the premises for inspection at all 
reasonable times.  The client records must include client name, address, age, date 
and type of treatment received, medical history (where relevant), details of any 
accident or adverse effects and therapist name.  The client shall sign a record card 
to say that they have been made aware of the risks involved.   

 
Please see www.lbhf.gov.uk/mst for application forms, Standard Conditions and further 
guidance.  You may contact me on 020 8753 5200 if you have any questions.  
 
You should respond to this letter within 14 days.  I will revisit the premises in a few weeks’ 
time and look forward to your co-operation in this matter. 
 
 
Yours sincerely  
 
 
 
Karen Ashdown 
Environmental Health Officer – Commercial Services 

Page 21

http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/mst


 
 
London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham 
Commercial Services Team 
PO Box 66532 
London W8 9GJ 
Tel: 020 8753 1081 
Email: commercialservices@lbhf.gov.uk 
Web:   www.lbhf.gov.uk/mst 
 

 

 

MST warning  

 
Ms Siu Chuk Au 
Orients Spa 
1 North End Road 
W14 8ST 
 
 
 
Dear Ms Siu Chuk Au, 
 
THE LONDON LOCAL AUTHORITIES ACT 1991 SPECIAL TREATMENT LICENCE 
TRADING NAME; ORIENTS SPA 
TRADING ADDRESS: 1 North End Road, London, W14 8ST 
 
I am writing to confirm the outcome of the licensing compliance visit that took place on 18th 
December 2018 at 14:40pm. Stephanie Needham and Police officers accompanied me. As 
you the licensee was not present at the premises, we spoke to your receptionist whom we 
understood to be named Mary. 
 
The following items were noted as breaches of the Special Treatment Licence conditions. 
 

1. There was no Public Liability Insurance displayed on the wall at the premises. 
 

2. The exemption for Yan Jiao Yi had expired 31st December 2017.  
 

3. The therapist certificates for Yan Jiao Yi and Mei San Sam were not displayed. They 
must be displayed where clients can see them. Please confirm if Mei San Sam is 
still working at the premises. 
 

4. Mei San Sam, Yan Jiao Yi and yourself are registered as practitioners. ACMP 
practitioners are not accepted as exempt in accordance with the London Special 
Treatments Exempt Body list. All three are not permitted to work unless we receive 
a ACMP Doctors qualification certificate or the therapists are registered with the 
Council providing evidence of the qualifications for the treatments they wish to carry 
out. Please find enclosed application forms.  
 

5. A therapist named Ip Lai Wa was found to be working at the premises but is not 
registered with the Council. Ip Lai Wa is not permitted to work unless she is 
registered with the Council. Please find an enclosed application form. 
 

6. Ip Lai Wa working at the premises was found not to be decently and appropriately 
attired. 

 
7. It was also noted that client cards were not being kept on the premises for all clients 

seen. Written client records shall be kept for a minimum of three years and available 
at the premises for inspection at all reasonable times. The client records must 

Our Ref: 2018/01664/MST 
 

 
Date: 4th January 2019 

Page 22

ka23_6
Typewritten Text
APPENDIX E



  Page 2 of 2 

include client name, address, age, date, and type of treatment received, medical 
history (where relevant), details of any accident or adverse effects and therapist 
name.  The client shall sign a record card to say that they have been made aware of 
the risks involved.   
 

8. No Electrical Installation Certificate information was supplied on the renewal 
application. I can now confirm that this information has now been received. 

 
 
Yours sincerely 
 
 
 
 
Steven Penketh 
Licensing Compliance Officer 

Page 23



 

 

Orients Spa, 1 North End Rd. W14 8ST     EXHIBIT DH.001 
 

10/01/19 (1250hrs)  

 

D Holland  

 

Op enters spa, greeted by an Asian f late 50s at reception. There was a single room on the ground floor with 

multiple rooms downstairs. The was an Asian f with blonde hair in the single room to the right of reception 

and one Asian f downstairs with dark hair. i asked the receptionist the prices. I was told, 30 mins - £30, 60 

mins - £50. They also go up to 90 mins. Whilst here I asked what massages they did to which she replied 

"SOFT HEAD TO TOE". I then asked if I could have deep tissue and was asked to pay a further £5. I 

explained that I would leave to get some cash. I was asked to book a slot with either Janice or li stating that if 

I didn't leave £10 deposit I may loose out on one of the two previously mentioned. I left the spa briefly to use 

the atm. On returning I was taken into  the room by an Asian female mid 40s wearing a dark green dress, 

dark shoulder length hair and thick rimmed black glasses. On entering there was a massage bed in the centre 

electronic candles, a wash area and soft playing music. I was asked to undress as the f left the room. There 

was a sign stating no sexual acts to be taken place (or words to that affect) the f knocked enters. I was given 

a deep tissue massage which wasn't as I've previously had, more so feeling like she was forcing her elbow 

into my lower back. After approx 30 mins she asked if I had been before and that shes seen me before (first 

time I've been to this area so where that come from I've no idee) I was then asked if I'd like a happy ending to 

which I replied "not this time" she continued with the massage now more of a soft massage. At one stage she 

was messaging from my head, my hands were at the end of the bed and it felt like she was forcing her mid 

section onto my hand. I then moved my hands. Towards the end the f whispered would like a hand job £30 

but I declined saying I've not enough cash. A further 5 minutes then she had finnished. I then got dressed and 

left the room. The female asked me to return another day and to have money to which I said I may return. A 

futher employee pushed passed me. Given this was an establishment where injured people come this again 

was very unprofessional. I then left the spa.  

 

 

Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



 
 
London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham 
Commercial Services Team 
PO Box 66532 
London W8 9GJ 
Tel: 020 8753 1081 
Email: commercialservices@lbhf.gov.uk 
Web:   www.lbhf.gov.uk/mst 
 

 

 

  

 
Ms Siu Chuk Au 
Orients Spa 
1 North End Road 
W14 8ST 
 
 
 
Dear Ms Siu Chuk Au, 
 
THE LONDON LOCAL AUTHORITIES ACT 1991 SPECIAL TREATMENT LICENCE 
TRADING NAME; ORIENTS SPA 
TRADING ADDRESS: 1 North End Road, London, W14 8ST 
 
I am writing to inform you that the Special Treatment Licence renewal application for 
Orients Spa is being referred to the Licensing Committee for determination.   
  
It has been found that the premises has been operating in breach of Standard Conditions 
and there is sufficient evidence that there are grounds for the council to consider refusal to 
renew the Special Treatments Licence.   
 
We have received evidence that services of a sexual nature are being offered at Orients 
Spa and this is in contravention of section 8 of The London Local Authorities Act 1991 Part 
II.   
 
The full list of the grounds for refusal of a licence as specified in section 8 of the Act is 
attached (pdf LLAA91). The following grounds would be most relevant in these 
circumstances: 
 

(c) the persons concerned or intended to be concerned in the conduct or management of the 
premises used for special treatment could be reasonably regarded as not being fit and proper 
persons to hold such a licence; 
 
(e) the premises have been or are being improperly conducted; 
 
You may continue trading until the Licensing Committee, in accordance with S7(8) of the 
London Local Authorities Act 1991:  
 

Where, before the date of expiry of a licence, an application has been made for its 
renewal or transfer, the licence shall be deemed to remain in force or, as the case 
may require, to have effect with any necessary modifications until the determination 
of the application by the borough council or the withdrawal of the application. 

 
 
 
 

Our Ref: 2018/01664/MST 
 

 
Date: 6th February 2019 
 
By email orients.spa@hotmail.com 

Page 31

ka23_7
Typewritten Text
APPENDIX H

ka23_8
Typewritten Text

ka23_9
Typewritten Text



  Page 2 of 2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
For your information, Steven Penketh has provided the following report from his revisit to 
the premises on 30th January 2019.   
 

• Public Liability Insurance – Now displayed and valid until 2 August 2019 

• Exemptions Certificates for Janjiad Yi and Mei San Sam were not on display. The 
receptionist Mary showed me proof that a new Exemption application had been 
submitted to ACMP for renewal for both therapists. 

• Client cards - it was found that only 1 client card had been completed on each day 
or on some days not at all since our visit on 18 December 2018. Also found that no 
home address was being filled out by customers. 

• The therapist Ip Lai Wa was not working at the premises at my time of visit. 
 
 
I will write to you with further details of the Licensing Committee hearing when the date of 
this meeting has been confirmed. 
 
 
Yours sincerely 
 

 
 
Karen Ashdown 
Environmental Health Officer 
 
 
cc Ms Siu Chuk Au 126 North End House Fitzjames Avenue West Kensington W14 0RZ 

Page 32



London Local Authorities 
Act 1991 

CHAPTER xiii 

ARRANGEMENT OF SECTIONS 

PART I 

PRELIMINARY 

Section 

1. Short title. 
2. Interpretation. 
3. Appointed day. 

PART II 

SPECIAL TREATMENT PREMISES 

4. Interpretation of Part II. 
5. Application of Part II. 
6. Licensing under Part II. 
7. Applications under Part II. 
8. Refusal of licence. 
9. Transmission and cancellation of licence. 

Page 33

ka23_10
Typewritten Text
APPENDIX I



c. xiii London Local Authorities Act 1991 

Section 
10. Power to prescribe standard terms, conditions and restrictions. 
11. Provisional grant of licences. 
12. Variation of licences. 
13. Part II appeals. 
14. Enforcement of Part II. 
15. Powers of entry. 
16. Application to existing special treatment premises. 
17. Repeal. 

PART III 

ENTERTAINMENT 

18. Amendment of Theatres Act 1968. 
19. Amendment of Cinemas Act 1985. 
20. Amendment of Private Places of Entertainment (Licensing) Act 

1967. 
21. Fees for entertainment licences. 

PART IV 

MISCELLANEOUS 

22. Distribution containers. 
23. Audible intruder alarms. 
24. Scaffolding licences. 

PART V 

GENERAL 

25. Liability of directors, etc. 

SCHEDULE: —Local enactments repealed in Greater London in 
relation to special treatment premises. 

Page 34



London Local Authorities Act 1991 c. xiii 

ELIZABETH II 

An Act to confer further powers upon local authorities 
in London; and for other purposes. [25th July 1991] 

— 

(1) It is expedient that further and better provision should be made for 
the improvement and development of local government services in London 
and for the benefit of persons residing therein and that the powers of 
London borough councils should be extended and amended as provided in 
this Act: 

(2) It is expedient that London borough councils should have improved 
power to license and control premises for massage and special treatment: 

(3) It is expedient that the other provisions contained in this Act should 
be enacted: 

(4) The purposes of this Act cannot be effected without the authority of 
Parliament: 

1991 CHAPTER xiii 

Page 35



2 c. xiii London Local Authorities Act 1991 

(5) In relation to the promotion of the Bill for this Act the Westminster 
City Council have complied with the requirements of section 239 of the 

1972 c. 70. Local Government Act 1972 and the other participating councils have 
complied with the requirements of section 87 of the Local Government 

1985 c. 51. Act 1985: 

May it therefore please Your Majesty that it may be enacted, and be it 
enacted, by the Queen's most Excellent Majesty, by and with the advice 
and consent of the Lords Spiritual and Temporal, and Commons, in this 
present Parliament assembled, and by the authority of the same, as follows, 
that is to say: — 

PART I 

PRELIMINARY 

Short title. 1. This Act may be cited as the London Local Authorities Act 1991. 

Interpretation. 2. In this Act, except as otherwise expressly provided or unless the 
context otherwise requires — 

"authorised officer" means an officer of a borough council authorised 
by the council in writing to act in relation to the relevant provision 
of this Act; 

"borough council" means London borough council but does not include 
the Common Council of the City of London; and "borough" shall 
be construed accordingly; and 

"Commissioner of Police" means the Commissioner of Police of the 
Metropolis. 

Appointed day. 3. —(1) In this Act "the appointed day" means such day as may be fixed 
in relation to a borough by resolution of the borough council, subject to 
and in accordance with the provisions of this section and "the second 
appointed day" shall be construed accordingly. 

(2) Different days may be fixed under this section for the purpose of the 
application of different provisions of this Act to a borough. 

(3) The borough council shall cause to be published in a local newspaper 
circulating in the borough notice — 

(a) of the passing of any such resolution and of the day fixed thereby; 
and 

(b) of the general effect of the provisions of this Act coming into 
operation as from that day; 

and the day so fixed shall not be earlier than the expiration of three months 
from the publication of the said notice. 

(4) Either a photostatic or other reproduction certified by the officer 
appointed for that purpose by the borough council to be a true reproduction 
of a page or part of a page of any such newspaper bearing the date of 
its publication and containing any such notice shall be evidence of the 
publication of the notice, and of the date of publication. 

Page 36



London Local Authorities Act 1991 c. xiii 3 

PARTII 

SPECIAL TREATMENT PREMISES 

4. In this Part of this Act unless the context otherwise requires — Interpretation of 
"establishment for special treatment" means any premises in the Part II. 

borough used, intended to be used or represented as being used for 
the reception or treatment of persons requiring massage, manicure, 
acupuncture, tattooing, cosmetic piercing, chiropody, light, electric 
or other special treatment of a like kind or vapour, sauna or other 
baths but does not include — 

(a) any premises which are not used for gain or reward; 
(b) any premises where the special treatment is carried out 

by or under the supervision of— 
(i) a medical practitioner duly registered by the General 

Medical Council; or 
(ii) any bona fide member of a body of health practitioners 

which has given notice in writing to the borough council 
that it — 

(A) has a register of members; 
(B) requires as qualification for membership 

qualifications by way of training for, and experience 
of, the therapy concerned; 

(C) requires its members to hold professional 
indemnity insurance; 

(D) subjects its members to a code of conduct and 
ethics, including a prohibition of immoral conduct in 
the course of their practice; and 

(E) provides procedures for disciplinary proceedings 
in respect of its members; 

and has supported that notice with satisfactory 
documentary evidence, if required by the council; or 

(iii) in the case of acupuncture, a dentist registered under the 
Dentists Act 1984; 1984 c. 24. 

(c) any premises which are used by a person who is registered 
by a board under the Professions Supplementary to Medicine 
Act 1960— 1960 c. 66. 

(i) solely for the practice of the profession in respect of which 
he is so registered; or 

(ii) for the practice of the profession in respect of which he 
isso registered and for the conduct by him of any business 
ancillary to such practice and no other purpose; 

(d) any hospital provided by the Secretary of State or by a 
National Health Service Trust established under the National 
Health Service and Community Care Act 1990 or by a charity 1990 c. 19. 
which is registered under section 4 of the Charities Act 1960 or 1960 c. 58. 
is exempted from registration by subsection (4) of that section; 
or 

(e) any nursing home which is for the time being registered 
under Part II of the Registered Homes Act 1984 or exempted 1984 c. 23. 
from registration under that Part of that Act; 

"licence" means a special treatment licence granted under section 6 
(Licensing under Part II) of this Act. 

Page 37



4 c. xiii London Local Authorities Act 1991 

PART II 5. This Part of this Act applies to a borough as from the appointed day. 
—cont. 

Application of 6. —(1) No premises shall be used in the borough as an establishment for 
Part II. special treatment except under and in accordance with a special treatment 
Ucensing under licence granted under this section by the borough council. 

(2) The borough council may grant to an applicant and from time to 
time renew or transfer a licence on such terms and conditions and subject 
to such restrictions as may be specified. 

(3) Without prejudice to the generality of subsection (2) above, such 
conditions may relate to— 

(a) the maintenance of public order and safety; 

(b) the number of persons who may be allowed to be on the premises 
at any time; 

(c) the qualifications of the persons giving the special treatment; 
(d) the taking of proper precautions against fire, and the maintenance 

in proper order of means of escape in case of fire, means for 
fighting fire and means of lighting, sanitation and ventilation of 
the premises; 

(e) the maintenance in safe condition of means of heating the premises; 

(f) the hours of opening and closing the establishment for special 
treatment; 

(g) the safety of any equipment used in connection with the special 
treatment and the way in which the treatment is given; 

(h) the cleanliness and hygiene of the premises and equipment; 
(i) the manner in which the establishment is operated and the way it 

is advertised. 

(4) Provided it has not been cancelled or revoked the licence shall remain 
in force for 18 months or such shorter period specified in the licence as 
the borough council may think fit. 

Applications 7. —.( 1) An applicant for the grant, renewal or transfer of a licence 
under Part shall not later than the day the application is made send a copy to the 

Commissioner of Police and a copy to the London Fire and Civil Defence 
Authority and, subject to subsection (2) below, no such application shall 
be considered by the council unless the applicant complies with this 
subsection. 

(2) The borough council may in such cases as they think fit, after 
consulting with the Commissioner of Police and the London Fire and Civil 
Defence Authority, consider an application for the grant, renewal or transfer 
of a licence notwithstanding that the applicant has failed to comply with 
subsection (1) above. 

(3) In considering any application for the grant, renewal or transfer of a 
licence the borough council shall have regard to any observations submitted 
to them by the Commissioner of Police and the London Fire and Civil 
Defence Authority within 28 days of the making of the application and 
may have regard to any observations submitted by them thereafter. 

(4) An applicant for the grant, renewal, transfer or variation of a licence 
shall furnish such particulars and give such other notices, including the 
public advertisement of the application, as the borough council may by 
regulation prescribe. 

Page 38



London Local Authorities Act 1991 c. xiii 5 

(5) Regulations under subsection (4) above may, inter alia, prescribe the PART II 
procedure for determining applications. —cont. 

(6) An applicant for the grant, renewal or transfer of a licence shall pay 
a reasonable fee determined by the council. 

(7) Where, before the date of expiry of a licence, an application has been 
made for its renewal or transfer, the licence shall be deemed to remain in 
force or, as the case may require, to have effect with any necessary 
modifications until the determination of the application by the borough 
council or the withdrawal of the application. 

8. The borough council may refuse to grant, renew or transfer a licence Refusal of 
on any of the following grounds: — licence. 

(a) the premises are not structurally suitable for the purpose; 
there is a likelihood of nuisance being caused by reason of the 
conduct, management or situation of the premises or the character 
of the relevant locality or the use to which any premises in the 
vicinity are put; 

(c) the persons concerned or intended to be concerned in the conduct 
or management of the premises used for special treatment could 
be reasonably regarded as not being fit and proper persons to hold 
such a licence; 

(d) the persons giving the special treatment are not suitably qualified; 
(e) the premises have been or are being improperly conducted; 

(J) the premises are not provided with satisfactory means of lighting, 
sanitation and ventilation; 

(g) the means of heating the premises are not safe; 
(h) proper precautions against fire on the premises are not being taken; 
(1) they are not satisfied as to the safety of equipment used in the 

special treatment or as to the manner in which the treatment is to 
be given; 

(j) they are not satisfied as to the safety of the special treatment to be 
given; 

(k) satisfactory means of escape in case of fire and suitable means for 
fighting fire are not provided on the premises; 

(1) the applicant has, within the period of five years immediately 
preceding the application to the borough council, been convicted 
of an offence under this Part of this Act; or 

(m) the applicant has failed to comply with the requirements of 
subsection (4) or (6) of section 7 (Applications under Part II) of 
this Act. 

9.—(1) Subject to subsection (2) of this section, in the event of the death Transmission and 
of the holder of a licence, the person carrying on at the place in respect of cancellation of 
which the licence was granted the function to which the licence relates shall licence. 

be deemed to be the holder of the licence unless and until the licence is 
transferred to some other person. 

(2) The borough council may revoke a licence held by a person by virtue 
of subsection (1) above for any of the grounds mentioned in section 8 
(Refusal of licence) of this Act. 

(3) The borough council may, at the written request of the holder, cancel 
the licence. 

Page 39

ka23_11
Highlight



6 c. xiii London Local Authorities Act 1991 

PART II 10. —(1) The borough council may make regulations prescribing standard 
COflt. conditions applicable to all, or any class of, licences, that is to say terms, 

Power to conditions and restrictions on or subject to which licences, or licences of 
prescnbe that class, are in general to be granted, renewed or transferred by them. 
standard terms, 
conditions and (2) Where the borough council have made regulations under this section, 
restnctions. every licence granted, renewed or transferred by them shall be deemed to 

have been so granted, renewed or transferred subject to any standard 
conditions applicable to it unless they have been expressly excluded or 
amended. 

Provisional grant 11. —(1) Where application is made to the borough council for the grant 
of licences. of a licence in respect of premises which are to be, or are in the course of 

being, constructed, extended or altered and the borough council are satisfied 
that the premises would, if completed in accordance with the requirements 
of the borough council, be such that they would grant the licence, the 
borough council may grant the licence subject to a condition that it shall 
be of no effect until confirmed by them. 

(2) The borough council shall, on application being made for the 
appropriate variation of the licence, confirm any licence granted by virtue 
of subsection (1) above if and when they are satisfied that the premises 
have been completed in accordance with the requirements of the borough 
council. 

Variation of 12. —(1) The holder of a licence may at any time apply to the borough 
licences. council for a variation in the terms, conditions or restrictions on or subject 

to which the licence is held. 

(2) The person making an application for such a variation of a licence 
shall on making the application pay to the borough council a reasonable 
fee determined by the council. 

(3) The borough council may— 
(a) make the variation specified in the application; 

(b) make that variation together with such further variation consequent 
thereon as the council may determine; or 

(c) refuse the application. 

Part II appeals. 13. —(1) Any of the following persons, that is to say: — 

(a) an applicant for the grant, renewal or transfer of a licence whose 
application is refused; 

(b) an applicant for the grant, renewal or transfer of a licence who is 
aggrieved by any term, condition or restriction on or subject to 
which the licence is granted, renewed or transferred; 

(c) an applicant for the variation of the terms, conditions or restrictions 
on or subject to which a licence is held whose application is 
refused; 

(d) an applicant for the variation of the terms, conditions or restrictions 
on or subject to which a licence is held who is aggrieved by any 
term, condition or restriction contained in a further variation 
made consequent on the variation applied for; 

(e) the holder of a licence which is revoked under section 9 
(Transmission and cancellation of licence) or section 14 
(Enforcement of Part II) of this Act; 

Page 40



London Local Authorities Act 1991 c. xiii 7 

may at any time before the expiration of the period of 21 days beginning PART II 
with the relevant date appeal to the magistrates' court acting for the petty 
sessions area in which the premises are situated by way of complaint for 
an order. 

(2) In this section "the relevant date" means the date on which the 
person in question is notified in writing of the refusal of his application, 
the imposition of the terms, conditions or restrictions by which he is 
aggrieved or the revocation of his licence, as the case may be. 

(3) An appeal by either party against the decision of the magistrates' 
court under this section may be brought to the Crown Court. 

(4) On an appeal to the magistrates' court or to the Crown Court under 
this section the court may make such order as it thinks fit and it shall be 
the duty of the borough council to give effect to such order. 

(5) Where any licence is revoked under section 14 (Enforcement of Part 
II) of this Act or an application for the renewal of a licence is refused, the 
licence shall be deemed to remain in force — 

(a) until the time for bringing an appeal under this section has expired 
and, if such an appeal is duly brought, until the determination or 
abandonment of the appeal; and 

(b) where an appeal relating to the refusal of an application for such 
a renewal is successful until the licence is renewed by the borough 
council. 

(6) Where any licence is renewed under section 6 (Licensing under Part 
II) of this Act and the borough council specify any term, condition or 
restriction which was not previously specified in relation to that licence, 
the licence shall be deemed to be free of it until the time for bringing an 
appeal under this section has expired and, if such an appeal is duly brought, 
until the determination or abandonment of the appeal. 

(7) Where the holder of a licence makes an application under section 12 
(Variation of licences) of this Act and the borough council make the 
variation applied for together with a further variation, then the licence 
shall continue as it was before the application — 

(a) until the time for bringing an appeal under this section against any 
term, condition or restriction contained in the further variation 
has expired; and 

(b) where any such appeal is brought, until the determination or 
abandonment of the appeal. 

14. —(1) If any occupier or other person concerned in the conduct or Enforcement of 
management of premises in the borough uses them as an establishment for Part II. 
special treatment or represents them as being so used or permits the 
premises to be so used he shall, unless the premises are currently licensed 
by the borough council under this Part of this Act, be guilty of an offence 
and shall be liable on summary conviction to a fine not exceeding level 4 
on the standard scale. 

(2) If any premises in of which a licence is in force are used as 
an establishment for special treatment otherwise than in accordance with 
the terms, conditions or restrictions on or subject to which the licence is 
held, then the holder of the licence or other person concerned in the conduct 
or management of the premises shall be guilty of an offence and liable on 
summary conviction to a fine not exceeding level 4 on the standard scale. 

Page 41



8 c. xiii London Local Authorities Act 1991 

PART [1 (3) Subject to section 13 (Part II appeals) of this Act, the borough council 
COflt. may revoke a licence if its holder is convicted of an offence under subsection 

(2) above. 

Powers of entry. 15. .—( 1) Any duly authorised officer or duly authorised officer of the 
London Fire and Civil Defence Authority (on production, if so required, of 
a duly authenticated document showing his authorisation) or any constable, 
may at all reasonable times enter upon, inspect and examine any premises 
which are, or which he has reasonable cause to believe are — 

(a) used, represented as being used, or intended to be used as an 
establishment for special treatment without the requisite licence; 
or 

(b) used in contravention of the terms, conditions or restrictions on 
or subject to which a licence is granted; 

and may do all things reasonably necessary for the purpose of ascertaining 
whether an offence has been committed. 

(2) Subsections (2), (3) and (4) of section 287 of the Public Health Act 
1936 c. 49. 1936 shall apply in respect of entry to premises for the purposes of this 

section as they apply to entry to premises for the purposes of subsection 
(1) of that section. 

(3) Any person who intentionally obstructs any person acting in the 
exercise of his powers under this section shall be guilty of an offence and 
shall be liable on summary conviction to a fine not exceeding level 3 on 
the standard scale. 

Application to 16. —(1) ln respect of premises licensed or registered under an enactment 
existing special specified in the Schedule to this Act on the date this Part of this Act comes 
treatment into force in the borough in which the premises are situated, section 6 
premise (Licensing under Part II) of this Act shall not apply until the expiry of the 

licence or registration granted under that enactment. 

(2) If, on an application for a licence duly made under this Part of this 
Act in respect of such premises as are referred to in subsection (1) 
above — 

(a) the application is refused; or 
(b) the licence is granted subject to a term, condition or restriction 

additional to those attached to the licence or registration under 
the earlier enactment; 

then in a case falling within paragraph (a) above this Part of this Act shall 
have effect as though the applicant held a licence on and subject to the 
same terms, conditions and restrictions as under the previous licence or 
registration and the application had been for the renewal thereof, and in a 
case falling within paragraph (b) above this Part of this Act shall have effect 
as though the applicant held such a licence which had been renewed with 
a term, condition or restriction not previously specified in relation to the 
licence. 

(3) Where premises to which subsection (1) above does not apply are 
lawfully being used as an establishment for special treatment immediately 
before the date on which this Part of this Act comes into force in the 
borough in which the premises are situated, and an application for the 
grant of a licence is duly made before that date in respect of the premises, 
this Part of this Act shall have effect as though the applicant held a licence 
free of any terms, conditions or restrictions and the application had been 
for the renewal thereof. 

Page 42



London Local Authorities Act 1991 c. xiii 9 

17. Subject to section 16 (Application to existing special treatment PART II 
premises) of this Act, the enactments specified in column (2) of the Schedule cont. 

to this Act, so far as they relate to any part of Greater London, and bye-laws Repeal. 
made thereunder, shall cease to have effect in a borough on the day which 
the council of that borough resolve to be the appointed day for the purposes 
of this Part of this Act. 

III 

ENTERTAINMENT 

18. —(1) This section applies in a borough as from the appointed day. Amendment of 
Theatres Act 

(2) In section 18 (1) of the Theatres Act 1968, which defines expressions 1968. 
used in that Act, in the definition of "public performance", after "Public 1968 c. 54. 
Order Act 1936" there shall be added, "any performance which is not open 1936 c. 6 

for the public but which is promoted for private gain". (lEdw.8 & 

(3) In the Theatres Act 1968, after section 18, there shall be added — eo. 

18A. —(1) For the purposes of this Act a performance is 
private promoted for private gain if, and only if— 

(a) any proceeds from the performance, that is to say, any 
sum paid for admission to the performance; or 

(b) any other sums (whenever paid) which, having regard 
to all the circumstances, can reasonably be regarded as 
paid wholly or partly for admission to the performance; 
or 

(c) where the performance is advertised (whether to the 
public or otherwise), any sums not falling within 
paragraph (b) above which are paid for facilities or 
services provided for persons admitted to the 
performance; 

are applied wholly or partly for purposes of private gain. 

(2) If in proceedings for an offence under section 13 (1) above 
any question arises whether a performance was promoted for 
private gain and it is proved — 

(a) that any sums were paid for admission to the 
performance or to the premises at which it was given 
and that the performance was advertised to the public; 
or 

(b) that any sums were paid for facilities or services 
provided for persons admitted to the performance and 
that the performance was advertised (whether to the 
public or otherwise); or 

(c) that the amount of any payment falling to be made in 
connection with the promotion of the performance 
was determined wholly or partly by reference to the 
proceeds of the performance or any facilities or services 
provided for persons admitted to it; 

the performance shall be deemed to have been promoted for 
private gain unless the contrary is shown. 

(3) Where a performance is promoted by a society which 
is established and conducted wholly for purposes other than 
purposes of any commercial undertaking and sums falling within 

Page 43



10 c. xiii London Local Authorities Act 1991 

PART III subsection (1) above are applied for any purpose calculated to 
cont. benefit the society as a whole, the performance shall not be 

held to be promoted for private gain by reason only that the 
application of those sums for that purpose results in benefit to 
any person as an individual. 

(4) In subsection (3) above 'society' includes any club, 
institution, organisation or association of persons, by whatever 
name called.". 

Amendment of 19. —(1) This section applies in a borough as from the appointed day. 
Cinemas Act 
1985. (2) In section 3 of the Cinemas Act 1985, which provides for the grant, 
1985 c. 13. renewal and transfer of a licence under that Act, after subsection (1) there 

shall be inserted — 

"(1A) An applicant for the grant, transfer, renewal or variation of an 
annual licence shall furnish such particulars and give such other 
notices as the licensing authority may by regulation prescribe: 

Provided that no regulation made under this section shall require 
the public advertisement of an application for — 

(a) renewal or transfer of a licence; or 

(b) a variation of a licence where that variation relates to a 
single period of not more than 24 hours and where that licence 
has not been previously varied more than 12 times within the 
12 months preceding the day on which the application is made.". 

Amendment of 20. —(1) This section applies in a borough as from the appointed day. 
Private Places of 
Entertainment (2) In the Private Places of Entertainment (Licensing) Act 1967 there 
(Licensing) Act shall be inserted after section 4— 

1967 C. 19. 4A. —(1) Any duly authorised officer of the council (on 
inspection etc. production, if so required, of a duly authenticated document 

showing his authorisation) or any constable may at all reasonable 
times enter upon, inspect and examine any premises used, or 
which he has reasonable cause to believe are used for entertain- 
ment (or intended to be so used) without the requisite licence 
and may do all things necessary for the purpose of ascertaining 
whether such an offence has been committed. 

(2) Any person who wilfully obstructs any person acting in 
the exercise of his powers under this subsection shall be guilty 
of an offence and shall be liable on summary conviction to a 
fine not exceeding level 1 on the standard scale. 

(3) An authorised officer or a constable may exercise powers 
under subsection (1) above only if he has been granted a warrant 
by a justice of the peace. A justice may grant a warrant under 
this section only if he is satisfied either — 

(i) that notice of intention to apply for a warrant has been 
given to the occupier of the premises; or 

(ii) that the case is one of urgency or that the premises are 
unoccupied or the occupier is temporarily absent, or that 
the giving of notice of intention to apply for a warrant 
would defeat the object of entry. 

Page 44



London Local Authorities Act 1991 c. xiii 11 

A warrant under this section shall authorise entry, if need be by PART III 

force, but shall have effect only for seven days or until the power 
conferred by this section in accordance with the warrant has 
been exercised, whichever is the shorter.". 

(3) In the Private Places of Entertainment (Licensing) Act 1967, there 1967 c. 19. 
shall be inserted after section 5— 

5A.—(1) For the purposes of this Act entertainment is 
private promoted for private gain if, and only if— 

(a) any proceeds of the entertainment, that is to say, any 
sums paid for admission to the entertainment; or 

(b) any other sums (whenever paid) which, having regard 
to all the circumstances, can reasonably be regarded as 
paid wholly or partly for admission to the entertain- 
ment; or 

(c) where the entertainment is advertised (whether to the 
public or otherwise), any sums not falling within 
paragraph (b) above which are paid for facilities or 
services provided for persons admitted to the entertain- 
ment; 

are applied wholly or partly for purposes of private gain. 

(2) If in proceedings for an offence under section 4 (1) above 
any question arises whether an entertainment was promoted for 
private gain and it is proved — 

(a) that any sums were paid for admission to the entertain- 
ment or to the premises at which it was given and that 
the entertainment was advertised to the public; or 

(b) that any sums were paid for facilities or services 
provided for persons admitted to the entertainment 
and that the entertainment was advertised (whether to 
the public or otherwise); or 

(c) that the amount of any payment falling to be made in 
connection with the promotion of the entertainment 
was determined wholly or partly by reference to the 
proceeds of the entertainment or any facilities or 
services provided for persons admitted to it; 

the entertainment shall be deemed to have been promoted for 
private gain unless the contrary is shown. 

(3) Where an entertainment is promoted by a society which 
is established and conducted wholly for purposes other than 
purposes of any commercial undertaking and sums falling within 
subsection (1) above are applied for any purpose calculated to 
benefit the society as a whole, the entertainment shall not be 
held to be promoted for private gain by reason only that the 
application of those sums for that purpose results in benefit to 
any person or an individual. 

(4) In subsection (3) above 'society' includes any club, 
institution, organisation or association of persons, by whatever 
name called.". 

Page 45



12 c. xiii London Local Authorities Act 1991 

PART III 21. —(1) This section applies in a borough as from the appointed day. 
—cont. 

Fees for (2) In section 3 (4) of the Private Places of Entertainment (Licensing) 
entertainment Act 1967 (which provides for the grant, duration and transfer of licences 
licences. under that Act) for "a fee of five pounds" there shall be substituted "such 
1967 c. 19. reasonable fee as the licensing authority may determine". 

(3) In the Private Places of Entertainment (Licensing) Act 1967, after 
section 3 there shall be inserted — 

a licence may at any time apply to 
the licensing authority for a variation in the terms, conditions 
or restrictions on or subject to which the licence is held. 

(2) The person making an application for such a variation of 
licence shall on making the application pay to the licensing 
authority such reasonable fee as the licensing authority may 
determine. 

(3) The licensing authority may — 

(a) make the variation specified in the application; 
(b) make that variation together with such further variation 

consequent thereon as the council may determine; or 
(c) refuse the application.". 

(4) In section 5 of the Private Places of Entertainment (Licensing) Act 
1967, in subsection (1) there shall be inserted, after paragraph (b) — 

"(c) the holder of any such licence as aforesaid who is aggrieved by a 
variation of his licence or by a refusal to vary his licence,". 

1968 c. 54. (5) In Schedule 1 to the Theatres Act 1968 (which makes provision with 
respect to licences under that Act) — 

(a) in paragraph 7, before the beginning of the paragraph, there shall 
be inserted "(1)"; and 

(b) after paragraph 7 there shall be inserted — 

"(2) The person making an application for such a variation of 
licence shall, on making the application, pay to the licensing 
authority such reasonable fee as the licensing authority may 
determine.". 

PART IV 

MISCELLANEOUS 

Distrbution 22. —(1) Without prejudice to the provisions of sections 143 and 149 of 
containers, the Highways Act 1980 (which relate to the removal of structures erected 
1980 C. 66. or things deposited on a highway) if a borough council consider that for 

the good management of a highway or for the purpose of performing any 
of their functions a distribution container which has been deposited on the 
highway ought to be removed or repositioned, they may — 

(a) require the owner of the container to remove or reposition it; or 
(b) themselves remove or reposition the container or cause it to be 

removed or repositioned. 

(2) Where a borough council remove or reposition a distribution 
container under subsection (1) above they shall, where practicable, notify 
the owner, but if the owner cannot be traced, or if within the period 

Page 46



London Local Authorities Act 1991 c. xiii 13 

specified in any such notice (not being less than one month from the date PART IV 
of the notice) he has not recovered the container, they may dispose of the 
container and its contents. 

(3) Where a borough council acting under this section — 

(a) exercise powers in relation to a container other than the power of 
disposal, they may recover their expenses in so doing (including 
any storage expenses) as if they were expenses recoverable under 
section 149 (3) (a) of the Highways Act 1980; 1980 c. 66. 

(b) exercise their powers in relation to a container including the power 
of disposal, they may recover their expenses in so doing (including 
any storage expenses) as if they were expenses recoverable under 
section 149 (4) or, where material, (5) of the said Act in a case 
where an order authorising removal and disposal of the container 
has been made on a complaint by them under the said section 149 
(4); 

and in a case falling within paragraph (b) above where they recover their 
expenses in the manner provided by the said section 149 (4) they shall 
apply any balance of the proceeds of disposal in the manner so provided. 

(4) In this section "distribution container" means any unattended 
container deposited in the highway for the free distribution of its contents 
to, or collection of its contents by, the public. 

23. —(1) As from the appointed day in a borough — Audible intruder 
(a) the owner or occupier of premises in the borough who installs an alanns. 

audible intruder alarm for use on or in those premises, shall — 

(i) ensure that the alarm is fitted with a device as specified 
in subsection (3) below; 

(ii) notify the police of the names and addresses of nominated 
key-holders; 

(iii) within 48 hours of the installation of the audible intruder 
alarm notify the council of the installation; and 

(iv) inform the council of the address of the police station to 
which notification has been given under paragraph (ii) above. 

(b) a person who becomes the owner or occupier of premises in the 
borough in which there is installed an audible intruder alarm for 
use on or in those premises, shall not permit the operation of the 
alarm unless — 

(i) it is fitted with a device as specified in subsection (3) 
below; 

(ii) he has notified the police of the names and addresses of 
nominated key-holders; and 

(iii) he has informed the council of the address of the police 
station to which notification has been given under paragraph 
(ii) above. 

(2) As from the second appointed day in a borough, the occupier of 
premises on or in which an audible intruder alarm has been installed shall 
not permit the operation of the alarm — 

(a) unless it is fitted with a device as specified in subsection (3) below; 
and 

(b) unless the police have been notified of the names and addresses of 
nominated key-holders. 

Page 47



14 c. xiii London Local Authorities Act 1991 

PARTlY (3) A device required by subsections (1) and (2) above is a device of 
COflt. such specifications as the council may reasonably determine to prevent the 

alarm operating audibly to persons living or working near the premises for 
more than 20 minutes after it is activated. 

(4) Where one of the nominated key-holders whose names and addresses 
were notified to the police under subsection (1) or (2) above or this 
subsection ceases to hold keys sufficient to obtain access to the premises, 
the occupier shall notify the police of the name and address of another 
nominated key-holder. 

(5) The requirement to notify the police under this section shall be 
satisfied if notice in writing is given to the police at any local police station 
in the borough. 

(6) A person who without reasonable excuse contravenes subsection (1), 
(2) or (4) above shall be guilty of an offence and liable on summary 
conviction in the case of a contravention of subsection (1) (a) (i) or (2) (a), 
to a fine not exceeding level 5 on the standard scale, in the case of a 
contravention of subsection (1) (b) (i), to a fine not exceeding level 4 on 
the standard scale and in any other case to a fine not exceeding level 2 on 
the standard scale. 

(7) If it is shown to the satisfaction of a justice of the peace in respect 
of premises in a borough — 

(a) that an audible intruder alarm is operating more than one hour 
after it was activated; and 

(b) that steps have been taken to obtain access to the premises with 
the assistance of the persons whose names and addresses have 
been notified under subsection (1), (2) or (4) above and access has 
not been obtained, or that no such persons have been notified 
under those subsections; and 

(c) that the operation of the audible intruder alarm is causing 
annoyance to persons living or working near the premises; 

the justice may by warrant authorise an authorised officer to enter the 
premises if need be by force and taking with him such qther persons and 
such equipment as may be necessary to de-activate the alarm. 

(8) An authorised officer shall not enter premises under this section 
unless he is accompanied by a constable. 

(9) An authorised officer who enters premises under this section shall 
not cause more than the minimum amount of damage and disturbance 
necessary to effect an entry and to de-activate the alarm. 

(10) An authorised officer who has de-activated an alarm under this 
section shall — 

(a) if reasonably practicable, re-set the alarm; and 
(b) leave the premises in other respects, so far as reasonably practicable, 

as effectively secured against trespassers as he found them. 

(11) A warrant issued in pursuance of this section shall continue in force 
until the purpose for which the entry is required has been satisfied. 

(12) In this section, where premises comprise a building which is being 
erected, constructed, altered, improved, maintained, cleaned or repaired, 
the occupier does not include a person whose occupancy is in connection 
with the erection, construction, alteration, improvement, maintenance, 
cleaning or repair and whose occupancy is by virtue of a licence for less 
than four weeks. 

Page 48



London Local Authorities Act 1991 c. xiii 15 

(13) Nothing in this section applies to an audible intruder alarm installed PARTlY 

in a motor vehicle. 

(14) In this section the second appointed day in any borough shall not 
be less than six months after the day appointed by the council of that 
borough under subsection (1) above. 

(15) In this section "nominated key-holders" means either — 

(a) two persons, other than the occupier, who hold keys sufficient to 
obtain access to the premises in question; or 

(b) a company whose business consists of or includes the service of 
holding keys for the occupiers of premises, which is available to 
be contacted at any time and which holds keys sufficient to obtain 
access to the premises in question. 

24. -4-( 1) Without prejudice to the generality of subsection (1) of section Scaffolding 
169 of the Highways Act 1980 (which provides for licensing of scaffolding licences. 

on or over highways), where a highway authority (being a borough council) 1980 C. 66. 

grant a licence under that section they may include among the terms 
contained in the licence requirements to take such measures as may be 
therein specified — 

(a) to prevent unauthorised persons from having access to the 
scaffolding or climbing it; and 

(b) to protect the security of the building in respect of which the 
scaffolding is required, or any adjacent building. 

(2) A breach of a condition under this section shall not affect liability in 
civil proceedings. 

PART V 

GENERAL 

25. —(1) Where an offence under this Act committed by a body corporate Liability of 
is proved to have been committed with the consent or connivance of, or directors, etc. 
to be attributable to any neglect on the part of, a director, manager, secretary 
or other similar officer of the body corporate or any person who was 
purporting to act in any such capacity, he, as well as the body corporate, 
shall be guilty of the offence. 

(2) Where the affairs of a body corporate are managed by its members, 
subsection (1) above shall apply to the acts and defaults of a member in 
connection with his functions of management as if he were a director of 
the body corporate. 

Page 49



16 c. xiii London Local Authorities Act 1991

SCHEDULE
Sections 16 and LOCAL ENACTMENTS REPEALED IN GREATER LONDON IN RELATION TO SPECIAL
17. TREATMENT PREMISES

Chapter
(1)

Short title
(2)

Extent of repeal
(3)

10 & 11 Geo. 5
c. lxxxix.

London County Council (General
Powers) Act 1920.

Part IV.

21 & 22 Geo. c. ci. Surrey County Council Act 1931. Part IV.

23 & 24 Geo. 5 c. xiv. Essex County Council Act 1933. Part IV.

7 & 8 Geo. 6 c. xxi. Middlesex County Council Act 1944. Part XII.

1981 c. xvii. Greater London Council (General
Powers) Act 1981.

Section 19.

1984 c. xxvii. Greater London Council (General
Powers) Act 1984.

Section 40 and
Schedules 2 and 3.

PRINTED IN ENGLAND BY PAUL FREEMAN
Controller and Chief Executive of Her Majesty's Stationery Office and

Queen's Printer of Acts of Parliament

© Crown Copyright 1991

LONDON: PUBLISHED BY HMSO

ISBN 0 10 511391 3

Page 50



LONDON BOROUGH OF HAMMERSMITH AND FULHAM 
SPECIAL TREATMENT LICENSING

STANDARD LICENSING CONDITIONS FOR 
PREMISES OFFERING   

SPECIAL TREATMENTS 

STANDARD CONDITIONS IN FORCE  
1st April 2012 FOR PREMISES LICENCED BY  

THE LONDON BOROUGH OF HAMMERSMITH AND FULHAM TO 
OFFER SPECIAL TREATMENTS 

Page 51

ka23_12
Typewritten Text
APPENDIX J



LIMSSD09 MST Standard Conditions v2  010312  Page 2 of 20 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

Standard Conditions for Premises Operating 
Special Treatments  

CONTENTS 

PART I – General 
1) Definitions 3 
2) Dispensation or modification of rules 4 
3) Enforcement 4 

PART 2 – Conditions Applicable to all Premises 
1) The Licence 5 
2) Responsibility of the Licensee 5 
3) Age Related Treatments 6 
4) Conduct of the Premises 6 
5) People with Disabilities 6 
6) Authorised Officers 6 
7) Electricity 6 
8) Personal Hygiene 6 
9) Cleaning 7 
10) Refuse 7 
11) Client Records 7 
12) Maintenance and Inspection Certification of Systems and Equipment 7 
13) Qualifications/Training 7 
14) Anaesthetic 8 
15) Control of Substances Hazardous to Health 8 
16) Aftercare 8 
17) First Aid 8 
18) Language 8 

PART 3 - Additional Conditions for Specific Treatments 

1) Sauna 8 
2) Heated Spa Baths 10 
3) Ultra Violet Tanning Equipment 11 
4) Tattooing 11 
5) Semi Permanent Make Up/Micropigmentation 13 
6) Electrolysis 14 
7) Body Piercing 15 
8) Manicure and Pedicure 16 
9) Fish Spa Manicure and Pedicure 16 
10) Artificial Nails 17 
11) Non surgical Laser/Intense Pulsed Light (IPL)  18 

Appendix A  Certification to be held at Licensed Premises 19 

Page 52



LIMSSD09 MST Standard Conditions v2  010312                 Page 3 of 20 
 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham  

 
 
 

STANDARD CONDITIONS FOR  
PREMISES OFFERING SPECIAL TREATMENT 

 
Conditions for premises offering Special Treatments licensed by the London Borough of 
Hammersmith and Fulham in force from 1st April 2012. 
 
INTRODUCTION 
 
These Standard Conditions are applicable to all premises offering special treatments. Their 
application does not in any way replace or reduce the underlying statutory duty of employers 
and self employed persons to comply with the requirements of the Health and Safety at Work 
etc Act 1974 and any associated regulations and codes of practice which may be applicable 
to these premises or any other legislation which applies. 
 
The licence holder should be aware of all the relevant provisions of the London Local 
Authorities Act 1991 within its scope.  The following points are particularly important but 
reference should be made to the Act itself for authoritative information. 
 

Part 1 - GENERAL 
 
Definitions 
 
1) In these rules, unless the context otherwise requires:- 
 

a) Act means Part II of the London Local Authorities Act 1991 (as amended). 
 

b) Approval of the Council or Consent of the Council means the written approval or 
consent of the Council as Licensing Authority in writing. 

 
c) Approved, Accepted or Permitted means approved, accepted or permitted by the 

Council in writing. 
 

d) Council means the London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham. 
 

e) Special Treatment means massage, electric treatments, light treatments, water 
treatments, skin piercing and other treatments of a like kind. 

 
f) Establishment for Special Treatment has the meaning set out in section 4 of the 

London Local Authorities Act 1991 (as amended). 
 

g) Licence Holder/Authorised Person means a person who is responsible for 
compliance with the standard conditions at all times that the premises are open for 
business. 

 
h) Licence means a special treatment licence granted under section 6 of the London 

Local Authorities Act 1991 (as amended). 
 

i) Premises means any premises within the Council’s area offering licensable special 
treatments and includes all installations, fittings etc 

 
j) Therapist means the person carrying out the special treatment .   

 

Page 53



LIMSSD09 MST Standard Conditions v2  010312                 Page 4 of 20 
 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham  

k) Authorised Officer means an Officer appointed by the Council. 
  
Dispensation or Modification of Rules 
 
2) (a) These rules may be dispensed with or modified by the Council in any special 

case. 
 

(b) The Council may, in granting a licence or giving any written approval or 
consent under these rules, impose such terms, conditions, or restrictions as it 
shall specify in writing. 

 
(c) If the licence holder wishes any licence terms, conditions or restrictions to be 

varied, an application must be made to the Council in writing. The Council may 
grant or refuse a variation application.    

 
Enforcement 
 
Right of Entry and Inspection 
 
3) (a) Section 15 of the Act gives authorised officers the power to enter, inspect and            

examine at all reasonable times any premises which are or believed to be 
  

(i) used, represented or intended to be used as an establishment for special 
treatment without the requisite licence  
(ii) or used in contravention of the terms, conditions or restrictions on or 
subject to which a licence is granted  

 
 and may do all things reasonably necessary for the purpose of ascertaining 

whether an offence has been committed. 
 
Offences and Penalties 
 

(b)  Any occupier or other person concerned in the conduct or management of 
premises who uses, represents as being so used or permits to be so used as 
an establishment for special treatment unless under a current licence shall be 
guilty of an offence and liable on summary conviction to a fine not exceeding 
level 4 on the standard scale.   

 
(c)  If there is use of any premises where a licence is in force in other than in 

accordance with the terms, conditions or restrictions to which the licence is 
held then the licence holder or other person concerned in the conduct or 
management of the premises shall be guilty of an offence and liable on 
summary conviction to a fine not exceeding level 4 on the standard scale 

 
(d)  Any person who intentionally obstructs any person acting in the exercise of 

powers under section 15 shall be liable on summary conviction to a fine not 
exceeding level 3 on the standard scale 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 54



LIMSSD09 MST Standard Conditions v2  010312                 Page 5 of 20 
 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham  

 
PART 2 - Conditions applicable to all premises 

 
1) The Licence 

 

a) The current licence or a clear copy shall at all times be prominently displayed at the 
premises in a position where it can easily be read by customers.        

 
b) The licence is personal to its holder. The licence cannot be transferred to any other 

person unless the procedure prescribed in the Act has been followed, and the 
Council has granted the application. 

c) The licence is only valid in respect of the business named on the licence. 

d) Licences are granted for a maximum period of twelve months.  This being the period 
from 1st April to 31st March the following year.   

e) A licence will be issued in the name of the applicant and will include the number of 
individual therapists approved by the Council to carry out special treatments at that 
premises.   

 
2) Responsibility of the Licence Holder/Authorised Person 
 

a) The licence holder may authorise a responsible person to be in charge of the 
premises during opening hours. 

 
b) The licence holder and any authorised person shall take all reasonable precautions 

for the safety of all persons using the premises and ensure compliance at all times 
with the relevant provisions of the Health and Safety at Work etc Act 1974, and other 
associated legislation. 

c) The licence holder and any authorised person shall be accountable for all activities in 
the premises at all times. 

d) The licence holder shall take out employer’s liability (where applicable) and public 
liability insurance cover. The current certificate(s) or clear copy shall at all times be 
prominently displayed at the premises in a position where it can easily be read by 
customers.        

e) The licence holder and any authorised person shall ensure that all therapists carrying 
out ‘special treatments’ are suitably trained/qualified and evidence of such shall be 
submitted to the Council for approval.  The current Therapist Registration document 
issued by the Council, or a clear copy, shall at all times be prominently displayed at 
the premises in a position where it can easily be read by customers.          

f) No other persons other than those holding valid Therapist Registration documents are 
permitted to carry out special treatments.  Guest therapists shall not carry out 
treatments unless they have been previously notified to and approved by the Council 
and hold a valid Therapist Registration document. 

g) The licence holder and any authorised person shall ensure that no nuisance arises 
from the business activities including but not limited to odour nuisance or noise 
nuisance. 

 

Page 55

Karen
Highlight

Karen_1
Highlight

Karen_2
Highlight

Karen_3
Highlight

Karen_4
Highlight

Karen_5
Highlight



LIMSSD09 MST Standard Conditions v2  010312                 Page 6 of 20 
 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham  

h) The licence holder and any authorised person shall be familiar with all the conditions 
contained in this document and take responsibility for any breaches of said 
conditions.  

 
i) The licence holder and any authorised person shall ensure that all persons carrying 

out special treatments in the licensed premises are familiar with all the conditions 
contained in this document. 

 
3)  Age related treatments 
 

a) Where legal or advisory age restrictions are in place for certain treatments the 
premises must have a policy that requires people who appear to be under the age of 
18 to be asked to produce identification showing their photograph, date of birth and a 
holographic mark.  Examples of acceptable ID include: photo card driving licences, 
passports or proof of age cards bearing the PASS hologram and other forms of ID 
which meet the criteria.   

b) Staff who work in these venues must be made aware of the existence and content of 
the age verification policy. Details of checks should be written on the client record.   

 
4) Conduct of the Premises 

 
a) No poster, advertisement etc shall be displayed which is unsuitable for general 

exhibition. 

b) The licence holder and any authorised person shall ensure that no part of the 
premises is used by persons for soliciting or other immoral purposes. 

 
5) People with Disabilities 
 

The Equality Act 2010  gives disabled people important rights of access to everyday 
services licence holders have an obligation to make reasonable adjustments to 
premises or to the way they provide a service.  

 
6) Authorised Officers 
 
 Authorised officers of the Council, on presentation of their written authorisations and 

proof of identity, shall be admitted at all reasonable times to all parts of the premises.   
 
7) Electricity 
 

a) The licence holder shall ensure that all portable electrical appliances used within the 
licensed premises are maintained regularly in accordance with the Electricity at Work 
Regulations 1989. Records of this maintenance shall be available at the premises for 
inspection at all reasonable times. 

 
b) The licence holder shall ensure that the fixed electrical installation is inspected by 

competent electrical engineer in accordance with the Electricity at Work Regulations 
1989 and a copy of the current certificate shall be available at the premises for 
inspection at all reasonable times. 

 
8) Personal Hygiene 
  

a) If a therapist has any open boil, sore, cut or other open wound it must be effectively 
covered by an impermeable dressing. 

Page 56

Karen_6
Highlight

Karen_7
Highlight

Karen_8
Highlight

Karen_9
Highlight

Karen_10
Highlight



LIMSSD09 MST Standard Conditions v2  010312                 Page 7 of 20 
 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham  

b) A wash hand basin with a supply of hot and cold running water, liquid soap and 
disposable paper towels dispenser shall be provided in each treatment room.  

 
9)         Cleaning 

a) All treatment area floor and wall surfaces must be made of a suitable washable 
material. 

b) In addition to the wash hand basin, a deep sink with hot and cold running water shall 
be provided exclusively for washing used equipment; this should be fitted in a 
separate ‘dirty’ area away from the clean operating area.   
 

10)      Refuse 
 

a) Any waste produced in connection with the business, including hazardous /special 
waste, must be collected and disposed of by a licensed contractor. Evidence of trade 
waste contract(s), waste carrier licence and/or waste transfer notes shall be available 
at the premises for inspection at all reasonable times. 

 
b) Any ‘clinical’ waste bags and sharp boxes shall be suitably marked and whilst 

awaiting collection shall be stored in a secure area. 
 

c) Sharps containers shall comply with relevant British and European Standards.   
Sharps containers shall be collected when ¾ full and a waste transfer note shall be 
available on site for each container collected.   

  
11) Client Records  
 

a) Written client records including client name, address, age, date and type of treatment 
received, medical history (where relevant), details of any accident or adverse effects 
and therapist name shall be kept for all licensable treatments.    

 
b) Any contra–indications including but not limited to heart conditions, diabetes, 

epilepsy, blood borne diseases relevant for each treatment shall be discussed with 
the client prior to any treatment, and the client shall sign a record card to say that 
they have been made aware of the risks involved. 

 
c) Client records shall be kept for a minimum of three years and available at the 

premises for inspection at all reasonable times.   
 
12) Maintenance and Inspection Certification of Systems and Equipment 
 

a) All systems and equipment provided in the premises, such as but not limited to 
electricity installation, gas installation and equipment, fire safety equipment, local 
exhaust ventilation,  sterilisers and autoclave equipment, sun beds, lasers and IPL 
devices, saunas and steam rooms, spa pools, and any other equipment used to 
provide therapies shall be serviced and maintained regularly by competent persons 
in accordance with the manufacturer and supplier recommendations. Records shall 
be available on site at all times for inspection.  

 
13) Qualifications/Training 
 

a) All persons carrying out special treatments shall hold a suitable qualification to 
National Occupational Standards (where stated) in the treatments they carry out. 

Page 57

Karen_11
Highlight

Karen_12
Highlight



LIMSSD09 MST Standard Conditions v2  010312  Page 8 of 20 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

Training in the use of specific on site equipment shall also be undertaken with the 
manufacturer or supplier, where available. 

b) Relevant certificates or a clear copy shall be submitted to the Council for approval
and shall be available at the premises for inspection at all reasonable times.

c) Trainee/apprentice therapists shall be named on the Therapist Registration document
as such and may only carry out treatments under the direct supervision of their
trainer.

d) Where a therapist is exempt under the Act then current details of their membership of
the relevant body shall be submitted to the Council and shall be available at the
premises for inspection at all reasonable times.

14) Anaesthetic

a) It is an offence for any prescription only medicines to be applied to the client by the
therapist.  The administration of local anaesthetic by injection other than by medically
qualified practitioners is an offence.

b) Topical anaesthetic based creams, gels, sprays and similar preparations are
available at pharmacies and may be purchased and administered by the client
themselves prior to treatment if so desired. A detailed consultation assessing contra-
indications must be carried out.  This should be written on the client record.

The Medicines (Sale of Supply) (Miscellaneous Provisions) Regulations 1980 

15) Control of Substances Hazardous to Health Regulations 2002 (As  amended)

a) Substances including but not limited to chemicals in beauty and cleaning products,
blood and other bodily fluids and nail dust which fall under the above Regulations
shall be assessed in accordance with the requirements of those Regulations and all
the necessary precautions taken to ensure as far as reasonably practicable to
prevent exposure and to ensure safe use and storage.

b) The safety data sheets for all products used in connection with the business shall be
available at the premises.

16) Aftercare

a) Each client shall be provided with written aftercare advice for each treatment they
receive and confirmation of this shall be recorded on their client record card.

b) Clients shall sign for receipt of this aftercare advice.

17) First Aid

a) A suitably and sufficiently stocked first aid box shall be available in the premises.

b) At least one person shall be present in the premises at all times who is qualified in
basic first aid techniques to a suitable level.

Page 58

Karen_13
Highlight



LIMSSD09 MST Standard Conditions v2  010312  Page 9 of 20 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

18) Language

At least one person shall be present in the premises at all times who has an
acceptable level of spoken and written English in order to satisfactorily discuss all
matters relating to treatments and aftercare advice with clients.

PART 3 – Additional conditions for specific treatments 

1) Sauna/ Steam room/ Infrared Sauna

a) A thermometer shall be provided indicating the temperature inside the sauna/steam
room and the temperature created by the infrared sauna.

b) There must be a non-verbal alarm system in the vicinity linked to a manned reception
area for summoning help when users are left unattended. The alarm should continue
to sound until it is manually switched to the 'off' position in order to silence it. The
user must be made aware of the alert mechanism and how to use it. Emergency
devices shall be fitted within easy reach of a person using the equipment. Operation
verification test records shall be available at the premises for inspection at all
reasonable times.

c) Regular maintenance shall be carried out by a competent engineer in accordance
with manufacturer and supplier recommendations.  Records of all maintenance visits
shall be available at the premises at all reasonable times.

d) A clock shall be visible to users, from inside the sauna/steam room/infrared sauna.

e) The temperature control device shall not be accessible to users of the sauna/steam
room/infrared sauna.

f) Hot coals in the sauna shall be protected by a guard rail or barrier.

g) Shower facilities shall be provided close to the sauna/steam room/infrared sauna.

h) A supply of fresh drinking water shall be available close to the sauna/ steam room/
infrared sauna free of charge.

i) Safety guidelines on the use of the sauna/ steam room/ infrared sauna shall be
clearly displayed nearby.  These guidelines shall include the following:

• All jewellery to be removed
• Drink plenty of water before use
• No eating or drinking in the sauna/ steam room/ infrared sauna
• Avoid use if suffering from high blood pressure or heart problems
• Do not eat immediately before use
• Maximum time of use 20 minutes
• Seek doctors permission to use if pregnant
• Do not use if under 16 years of age
• Do not enter if suffering with swollen joints
• Do not enter if suffering with a fever
• Seek doctors permission to use if taking medication
• People with silicon implants should avoid use of infrared sauna
• Drink plenty of water after use

Page 59



LIMSSD09 MST Standard Conditions v2  010312  Page 10 of 20 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

2    Heated Spa Baths 

a) The spa must be managed and maintained to avoid the risk of Legionnella with
regard to the Health and Safety Executive Approved Code of Practice and Guidance
L8 (ACOP L8), The Control of Legionnella Bacteria in Water Systems ISBN
0717617726. Microbiological test reports must be held and available at the premises
for a minimum of 5 years in accordance with ACOP L8 and HPA Guidance for Spa
Pools.

b) A log book must be available for recording daily poolside tests to include pH, chlorine
or bromine levels, water clarity, temperature, number of bathers. The log-book should
state acceptable limits for all tests and record action taken in the event of an
unsatisfactory result. The log-book must be held at the premises and be available for
inspection at all reasonable times.

c) The spa pool must be operated and maintained in accordance with manufacturer’s
instructions and the Health Protection Agency guidance, Management of Spa Pools:
Controlling the Risks of Infection.  Records shall be available at the premises for
inspection at all reasonable times.

d) There must be a non-verbal alarm system in the vicinity linked to a manned reception
area for summoning help when users are left unattended. The alarm should continue
to sound until it is manually switched to the 'off' position in order to silence it. The
user must be made aware of the alert mechanism and how to use it. Emergency
devices shall be fitted within easy reach of a person using the equipment. Operation
verification test records shall be available at the premises for inspection at all
reasonable times.

e) Shower facilities shall be provided close to the spa and clients advised to shower
before entering the spa.

f) A supply of fresh drinking water shall be available close to the spa free of charge.

g) Safety guidelines on the use of the spa shall be clearly displayed nearby each spa.
These guidelines shall include the following:

• Do not use the spa under 16 years of age

• Maximum time in the spa is 15 minutes

• Do not use the spa if you are pregnant

• Do not use the spa if under the influence of drugs, alcohol or medication

• Seek doctors permission to use if suffering from obesity or with a medical history of
heart disease, low or high blood pressure, circulatory system problems

• Seek doctors permission to use if using medications

• Do not use the spa if you have any sores or open wounds

• Take care when entering and exiting the spa. Wet surfaces may be slippery

3) Ultra Violet Tanning Equipment

a) Ultra Violet (UV) tanning equipment must be operated and maintained in accordance
with manufacturer’s instructions and HSE guidelines IND (G) 209 ‘Reducing the
health risks from ultra violet (UV) tanning equipment. A record of maintenance and
servicing and copies of the electrical engineers report must be kept on the premises
for inspection at all reasonable times.

Page 60



LIMSSD09 MST Standard Conditions v2  010312                 Page 11 of 20 
 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham  

b) The HSE poster MISC 879 ‘UV tanning equipment’ shall be displayed in or near each 
tanning cubicle where it can be easily read by clients.  

 
c) No persons under the age of 18 shall be offered the use of a UV tanning equipment, 

permitted to use UV tanning equipment or allowed to be present in a Restricted Zone 
in accordance with the Sunbeds (Regulation) Act 2010.  

 
d) The maximum permissible output for all UV equipment from the 23rd July 2010 is  

0.3w/m2 in accordance with EN 60335-2-27: Household and similar electrical 
appliances – Safety Part 2-27: Particular requirements for appliances for skin 
exposure to ultraviolet and infrared radiation.  UV tubes on existing UV equipment in 
operation prior to this date shall be changed to comply with this standard as and 
when tubes are due to be changed as part of the routine maintenance schedule.     

e) Suitable tanning advice must be given to all clients relative to their skin type. The 
length of time that a client uses the tanning equipment shall be controlled by the 
management and based on an assessment by a trained therapist to include factors 
such as the client’s type of skin and power output of the UV tanning equipment. 

 
f) There must be a non-verbal alarm system in the vicinity linked to a manned reception 

area for summoning help when users are left unattended. The alarm should continue 
to sound until it is manually switched to the 'off' position in order to silence it. The 
user must be made aware of the alert mechanism and how to use it. Operation 
verification test records shall be available at the premises for inspection at all 
reasonable times.  Emergency devices shall be fitted within easy reach of a person 
using the equipment. These devices when operated shall switch off the Ultra Violet 
lamps and audibly summon assistance (in the case of the lay down beds it must also 
raise the upper canopy, or panel unit). 

 

g) All clients shall be provided with suitable protective eye equipment which meets 
relevant British and European Standards free of charge and instructed in their use.  
All goggles must be disinfected between clients or single use disposable goggles 
provided. 

h) Arrangements shall be made to ensure that the surface of the tanning equipment is 
cleaned and disinfected after each use in accordance with manufacturers 
instructions. 

 
4)       Tattooing 
 

a) A consultation with the client shall take place prior to the treatment, this shall include 
medical history, and a patch test may be carried out.  Every client shall read and sign 
a consent form prior to treatment.   

 
b) No tattoo shall be carried out on a client under the age of 18 years in accordance 

with the Tattooing of Minors Act 1969. 

c) Records of the Hepatitis B status of all tattooists shall be kept at the premises. It is 
recommended that each tattooist is vaccinated against Hepatitis B.   

d) All walls, floors, seating and surfaces in the tattoo area shall be made of impervious 
washable material. 

e) Single use disposable paper towel shall be used on the couches in the treatment 
room. 

Page 61



LIMSSD09 MST Standard Conditions v2  010312                 Page 12 of 20 
 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham  

f) All tattooists shall wear disposable non powdered low protein latex, vinyl or nitryl 
gloves. 

 
g) Disposable plastic aprons shall be provided for use by tattooist. These are single use 

for each client. 
 

h) A blood spillage kit which is in date shall be available in the treatment room.  All 
tattooists should be instructed in the correct procedure for dealing with blood 
splashing or spillage. 

 
i) Before tattooing the skin shall be cleaned with 70% isopropyl alcohol wipes prior to 

the piercing. 
 

j)    All equipment which is to be used shall be kept in sterile packets or closed containers 
before  use. 

 
k) Needles, pigment caps, stencils, razors, wooden spatulas, swabs and other 

equipment not to be sterilised are single use only and shall be disposed of as clinical 
waste after use. 

l) Tattoo motors and clip cords shall be covered with clear plastic during a tattoo and 
changed between clients. Ensure that the clear plastic covers the whole of the cord. 

m) Elastic bands used on the motors shall be changed between clients. 

n) Reusable instruments shall be manually cleaned in the sink used for cleaning dirty 
equipment before undergoing the ultrasonic cleaning process.  Cleaning shall occur 
below water level rather than under running water.  Staff shall wear a suitable 
disposable plastic apron during this process.   

o) After manual cleaning reusable instruments shall be put through a cycle in an 
ultrasonic cleaner in accordance with manufacturer’s and supplier’s instructions.  

p) The ultra sonic cleaner verification tests shall be undertaken at the intervals specified 
in accordance with manufacturer’s and supplier’s instruction and results shall 
recorded in the site logbook. 

q) Following ultra sonic cleaning any reusable instruments etc shall then be sterilised in 
a bench top autoclave in accordance with manufacturer’s and supplier’s instruction.  

r) The autoclave verification tests shall be undertaken at the intervals specified in 
accordance with manufacturer’s and supplier’s instruction and results shall be 
recorded in the site logbook. 

 

5) Semi-permanent make up/ Micropigmentation 
 

a) A consultation with the client shall take place prior to the treatment, this shall include 
medical history, and a patch test may be carried out.  Every client shall read and sign 
a consent form prior to treatment.   

 
b) No semi permanent make up/ micropigmentation shall be carried out on a client 

under the age of 18 years in accordance with the Tattooing of Minors Act 1969. 

c) Records of the Hepatitis B status of all therapists shall be kept at the premises. It is 
recommended that each therapist is vaccinated against Hepatitis B.   

Page 62



LIMSSD09 MST Standard Conditions v2  010312  Page 13 of 20 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

d) All walls, floors, seating and surfaces in the semi permanent make up/
micropigmentation area shall be made of impervious washable material.

e) Single use disposable paper towel shall be used on the couches in the treatment
room.

f) All therapists shall wear disposable non powdered low protein latex, vinyl or nitryl
gloves.

g) Disposable plastic aprons shall be provided for use by the therapist. These are single
use for each client.

h) A blood spillage kit which is in date shall be available in the treatment room.  All
therapists should be instructed in the correct procedure for dealing with blood
splashing or spillage.

i) Before semi permanent make up/ micropigmentation the skin shall be cleaned with
70% isopropyl alcohol wipes prior to the piercing.

j) All equipment which is to be used shall be kept in sterile packets or closed containers
before  use.

k) Needles, pigment caps, stencils, razors, wooden spatulas, swabs and other
equipment not to be sterilised are single use only and shall be disposed of as clinical
waste after use.

l) Reusable instruments shall be manually cleaned in the sink used for cleaning dirty
equipment before undergoing the ultrasonic cleaning process.  Cleaning shall occur
below water level rather than under running water.  Staff shall wear a suitable
disposable plastic apron during this process.

m) After manual cleaning reusable instruments shall be put through a cycle in an
ultrasonic cleaner in accordance with manufacturer’s and supplier’s instructions.

n) The ultra sonic cleaner verification tests shall be undertaken at the intervals specified
in accordance with manufacturer’s and supplier’s instruction and results shall
recorded in the site logbook.

o) Following ultra sonic cleaning any reusable instruments etc shall then be sterilised in
a bench top autoclave in accordance with manufacturer’s and supplier’s instruction.

p) The autoclave verification tests shall be undertaken at the intervals specified in
accordance with manufacturer’s and supplier’s instruction and results shall recorded
in the site logbook.

6) Electrolysis

a) A consultation with the client shall take place prior to the treatment, this shall include
medical history, and a patch test may be carried out.  Every client shall read and sign
a consent form prior to treatment.

b) Anyone under the age of 18 must be accompanied by a parent or guardian. The
parent/guardian must sign a consent form at the time of the treatment.

Page 63



LIMSSD09 MST Standard Conditions v2  010312                 Page 14 of 20 
 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham  

c) Records of the Hepatitis B status of all therapists shall be kept at the premises. It is 
recommended that each tattooist is vaccinated against Hepatitis B.   

d) All walls, floors, seating and surfaces in the electrolysis area shall be made of 
impervious washable material. 

e) Single use disposable paper towel shall be used on the couches in the treatment 
room. 

f) All therapists shall wear disposable non powdered low protein latex, vinyl or nitryl 
gloves. 

 
g) Disposable plastic aprons shall be provided for use by therapists. These are single 

use for each client. 
 

h) A blood spillage kit which is in date shall be available in the treatment room.  All 
therapists should be instructed in the correct procedure for dealing with blood 
splashing or spillage. 

 
i) Before electrolysis the skin shall be cleaned with 70% isopropyl alcohol wipes prior to 

the piercing. 
 

j)    All equipment which is to be used shall be kept in sterile packets or closed containers 
before  use. 

 
k) Individual pre-wrapped sterilised needles shall be used and disposed of properly in a 

sharps box after each client.   
 

l) Needles, pigment caps, stencils, razors, wooden spatulas, swabs and other 
equipment not to be sterilised are single use only and shall be disposed of as clinical 
waste after use. 

m) Reusable instruments shall be manually cleaned in the sink used for cleaning dirty 
equipment before undergoing the ultrasonic cleaning process.  Cleaning shall occur 
below water level rather than under running water.  Staff shall wear a suitable 
disposable plastic apron during this process.   

n) After manual cleaning reusable instruments shall be put through a cycle in an 
ultrasonic cleaner in accordance with manufacturer’s and supplier’s instructions.  

o) The ultra sonic cleaner verification tests shall be undertaken at the intervals specified 
in accordance with manufacturer’s and supplier’s instruction and results shall 
recorded in the site logbook. 

p) Following ultra sonic cleaning any reusable instruments etc shall then be sterilised in 
a bench top autoclave in accordance with manufacturer’s and supplier’s instruction.  

q) The autoclave verification tests shall be undertaken at the intervals specified in 
accordance with manufacturer’s and supplier’s instruction and results shall recorded 
in the site logbook. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 64



LIMSSD09 MST Standard Conditions v2  010312  Page 15 of 20 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

7) Body Piercing

a) A consultation with the client shall take place prior to the treatment, this shall include
medical history, and a patch test may be carried out.  Every client shall read and sign
a consent form prior to treatment.

b) Clients must be over the age of 18 for all types of body piercing other than ear, nose,
labret, eyebrow or navel.

c) No body piercing shall be administered to any person under the age of 16 with the
exception of ear and nose piercing.

d) Persons aged between 16 and 18 must provide identification which includes a
photograph and date of birth as detailed in condition Part 2 3(a).

e) Anyone under the age of 16 must be accompanied by a parent or guardian.
The parent/guardian must sign a consent form at the time of the piercing.

f) Piercing of the nipples or genitalia for both sexes under the age of 16 is prohibited.
Under the Sexual Offences Act 1956 girls and boys under the age of 16 cannot give
legal consent to intimate sexual contact under any circumstances therefore this can

be regarded as an assault offence.

g) Records of the Hepatitis B status of all piercers shall be kept at the premises. It is
recommended that each piercer is vaccinated against Hepatitis B.

h) All walls, floors, seating and surfaces in the piercing area shall be made of
impervious washable material.

i) Single use disposable paper towel shall be used on the couches in the treatment
room.

j) All piercers shall wear disposable non powdered low protein latex, vinyl or nitryl
gloves.

k) Disposable plastic aprons shall be provided for use by piercers. These are single use
for each client.

l) A blood spillage kit which is in date shall be available in the treatment room.  All
piercer should be instructed in the correct procedure for dealing with blood splashing
or spillage.

m) Before piercing the skin shall be cleaned with 70% isopropyl alcohol wipes prior to
the piercing.

n) All equipment which is to be used shall be kept in sterile packets or closed containers
before  use.

o) Needles, pigment caps, stencils, razors, wooden spatulas, swabs and other
equipment not to be sterilised are single use only and shall be disposed of as clinical
waste after use.

p) Reusable instruments shall be manually cleaned in the sink used for cleaning dirty
equipment before undergoing the ultrasonic cleaning process.  Cleaning shall occur
below water level rather than under running water.  Staff shall wear a suitable
disposable plastic apron during this process.

Page 65



LIMSSD09 MST Standard Conditions v2  010312                 Page 16 of 20 
 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham  

q) After manual cleaning reusable instruments shall be put through a cycle in an 
ultrasonic cleaner in accordance with manufacturer’s and supplier’s instructions.  

r) The ultra sonic cleaner verification tests shall be undertaken at the intervals specified 
in accordance with manufacturer’s and supplier’s instruction and results shall 
recorded in the site logbook. 

s) Following ultra sonic cleaning any reusable instruments etc shall then be sterilised in 
a bench top autoclave in accordance with manufacturer’s and supplier’s instruction.  

t) The autoclave verification tests shall be undertaken at the intervals specified in 
accordance with manufacturer’s and supplier’s instruction and results shall recorded 
in the site logbook. 

u) All jewellery shall be sterilised in the autoclave prior to use in the piercing. The date 
of sterilisation should be indicated on the packs and how long they will be sterilised 
for. 

v) Jewellery fitted with a stud shall not be used in nose piercing. 

w) Any jewellery which contains more than 0.05% nickel shall not be used, as this may 
cause an allergic reaction. 

8)        Manicure and Pedicure 

a) All therapists shall be qualified to a standard which is approved by the Council.   

b) Signed parental consent shall be obtained for all clients under 16 years old.   

c) The condition of the client’s nails should be examined prior to any treatment and if 
there is any presence or suspicion of any infection etc they should be referred for 
medical treatment.  

d) Any cotton wool etc which has come into contact with nail liquids shall be disposed of 
into suitably covered receptacles. 

e) Nail files, wooden spatulas, cotton wool and any other equipment not to be 
thoroughly cleaned and disinfected are single use only and shall be disposed of as 
clinical waste after use. 

f) Dispensed nail liquids and other products shall be kept in covered, labelled 
containers at all times when not in use. 

g) The use of electric drills/files on a clients natural nail is prohibited. 

h) All equipment shall be thoroughly cleaned and disinfected between use on each 
client. 

 
9) Fish Spa Manicure and Pedicure 

a) The condition of the client’s feet should be examined prior to any treatment and if 
there is any presence or suspicion of any infection etc they should be referred for 
medical treatment and shall not be permitted to use the fish spa.   

b) Signed parental consent shall be obtained for all clients under 16 years old.   
 

Page 66



LIMSSD09 MST Standard Conditions v2  010312  Page 17 of 20 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

c) Client feet shall be washed without detergent before treatment.

d) A record shall be kept of daily water quality testing including ammonia levels,
nitrate/nitrite levels, pH, water temperature.

e) All equipment necessary to ensure good aquarium maintenance and fish health such
as water filtration units, heaters, UV filters, ozone generators and aeration equipment
shall be used and maintained in accordance with manufacturer’s instructions.

f) A record shall be kept of fish supply and mortality.

10) Artificial Nails

a) All therapists shall be qualified to a standard which is approved by the Council.

b) Signed parental consent shall be obtained for all clients under 16 years old.

c) The condition of the client’s nails should be examined prior to any treatment and if
there is any presence or suspicion of any infection etc they should be referred for
medical treatment.

d) Products containing Methyl Methacrylate (MMA) shall not be used.

e) Any cotton wool etc which has come into contact with nail liquids shall be disposed of
into suitably covered receptacles.

f) Nail files, wooden spatulas, cotton wool and any other equipment not to be
thoroughly cleaned and disinfected are single use only and shall be disposed of as
clinical waste after use.

g) Dispensed nail liquids and other products shall be kept in covered, labelled
containers at all times when not in use.

h) The use of electric drills/files on a clients natural nail is prohibited.

i) Electric drills/files shall only be used on the surface of the artificial nail and must not
be used to blend the artificial nail to the natural nail.

j) Electric files/drills shall only be used by therapists who have had specific training in
their use.

k) All equipment shall be thoroughly cleaned and disinfected between use on each
client.

l) Where nail extensions are carried out suitable air filtering and extraction must be
provided to remove dust and chemicals from the air and preferably fitted at work top
level. Suitable dust and chemical filters should be fitted and the equipment operated
and maintained in good working order in accordance with manufacturers instructions.

11) Non Surgical Lasers/Intense Pulsed Light (IPL)

a) Laser/IPL equipment must be operated and maintained in accordance with
manufacturer’s instructions.  A record of maintenance and servicing and copies of the
electrical engineers report must be kept on the premises for inspection at all
reasonable times.

Page 67



LIMSSD09 MST Standard Conditions v2  010312  Page 18 of 20 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

b) Laser/IPL equipment must be operated and managed in with reference to guidance
issued by The Independent Healthcare Advisory Services (IHAS)  and Association of
Laser Protection Healthcare Advisors

c) The licence holder shall use a treatment protocol issued by / through an Expert
Medical Practitioner (EMP).

d) The Licence holder shall employ the services of a certificated Laser Protection
Advisor (LPA) to produce the Local Rules document and provide ongoing support
and advice when appropriate.

e) Both the Treatment Protocol and Local Rules shall be signed and dated by both the
EMP/LPA and licence holder and/or authorised person and  be available at the
premises at all times.

f) The Local Rules document shall be reviewed regularly and updated if there are any
changes made to the equipment in use, changes in procedure or treatment room.
Both the owner and LPA should sign the local rules.  The date of review shall be on
the local rules document and signed by the licence holder/or authorised person and
by the LPA if any changes have taken place.

g) A suitably qualified member of staff on the premises shall be identified as the Laser
Protection Supervisor (LPS) or Intense Pulse Light Protection Supervisor (IPLPS)
who will have the day to day to responsibility of ensuring the local rules are followed.

h) All authorised users of laser/IPL (and the LPS / IPLS if they are not a user)  shall be
trained to at least the Core of Knowledge Certificate level and records of such
training shall be kept on site with the local rules. The core of knowledge training
should be given by someone the inspecting officer deems suitable to supply this
training (such as a certificated LPA). Core of Knowledge training should be refreshed
regularly, at intervals not exceeding 5 years.

i) All authorised users of laser/IPL shall have attended site specific and equipment
specific operator training and ongoing Continued Professional Development.
Certificates and records of such training shall be kept on site with the local rules.

j) The Laser Protection Supervisor or Intense Pulse Light Protection Supervisor shall
ensure that the key to any laser/IPL device is kept in a secure and separate area
when not in use and that only authorised users have access to the key.

k) A written contemporaneous treatment register shall be completed every time the
laser/IPL is operated including the following information:

• the name of the person treated (including a second means of identification)

• the date and time of treatment

• the name and signature of the laser/IPL operator

• the nature of the laser/IPL treatment given

• the treatment parameters

• details of any accidents or adverse effects

l) The area around any laser/IPL device shall be controlled to protect other persons
while treatment is in progress. The controlled area shall be clearly defined and not
used for other purposes during laser/IPL treatment.

Page 68



LIMSSD09 MST Standard Conditions v2  010312  Page 19 of 20 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

m) A suitable safety warning sign or light entry system which complies with current
British Standards shall be in place on the door of the controlled area for the duration
the room is occupied for the purpose of laser/IPL treatment.

n) All laser/IPL devices shall comply with current British Standards and shall display
labels identifying them, their wavelength or range of wavelengths and the maximum
output power of the radiation emitted. The labels shall be clearly visible on the front
or side of the machine.

o) The door to the controlled area shall be fitted with a suitable locking device which can
be opened from the outside in an emergency.

p) All windows, mirrors and reflective surfaces in the controlled area shall be suitably
covered at times of operation of laser/IPL device in a manner approved by the Laser
Protection Advisor.

q) The controlled areas shall be kept clear of clutter, reflective surfaces shall be avoided
and jewellery shall not be worn by therapist or client.

r) Wall, floor and ceiling surfaces within the controlled area shall be of a matt or
eggshell finish to eliminate the risk of laser/IPL light reflection.

s) Protective eyewear shall be worn by everyone within the controlled area whenever
there is a risk of exposure to laser/IPL. All protective eyewear shall comply with
current British Standards and be marked with the wavelength range and protection
offered as detailed in the local rules document  The eyewear required (and specified
in the local rules) will be approved by the LPA. They shall be in a clean, serviceable
condition.  Complete eye blocks shall be worn by clients undergoing facial laser/IPL
treatment.

 APPENDIX A 

Documents required to be available at the Licensed Premises at ALL times 
This Appendix acts as checklist of the records which must be kept on site and available for 
inspection by an authorised Council officer at all reasonable times.  These records may be 
paper or electronic (except where display to public is required).  Documents requested in 
Part 2 of the Conditions apply to all Special Treatment premises.  Documents requested in 
Part 3 apply where a Special Treatment Licence to provide specific named treatments is 
held.   

1. The Licence Part 2 (1)
a) Display the current licence

2. Insurance Part 2 (2)
a) Display a copy of the employers liability (where applicable) and public liability certificates

3. Electricity Part 2 (7)
a) Valid documentation confirming the safety of portable electrical appliances (PAT test)
b) Valid documentation confirming the safety of the fixed wiring throughout the premises

4. Controlled/ Normal  Waste Part 2 (10)
a) Valid waste transfer documents

5. Client Records Part 2 (3) and Part 2 (11)
a) Written client records kept on site for a period of at least three years
b) Age verification records where appropriate

Page 69



LIMSSD09 MST Standard Conditions v2  010312  Page 20 of 20 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

6. Maintenance and Inspection of Systems and Equipment Part 2 (12)
Valid maintenance and inspection records for all systems and equipment used in the 
premises. This will include but not be limited to the records specifically listed and: 
a) Fire safety equipment
b) Gas installation (where applicable)
c) Heating and ventilation systems
d) Local exhaust ventilation equipment
e) Equipment emergency call or stop buttons (where applicable)
f) Equipment used to deliver therapy or treatment

7. Therapists Part 2 (2) and 2 (13)
a) Therapist qualifications and training certificates for the treatments they carry out
b) Display Therapist Registration document issued by the Council

8. Manufacturer Safety Data Sheets Part 2 (15)
a) Copies of safety data sheets for all products used

9. Sauna/ Steam Room/ Infra Red Sauna Part 3 (1)
a) Records of alarm system maintenance and testing
b) Records of sauna/ steam room/ infra red sauna unit maintenance by competent engineer

10. Heated Spa Baths Part 3 (2)
a) Records of water treatments to control legionnella bacteria
b) Records of spa pool maintenance by competent engineers
c) Records of spa pool operation
d) Records of alarm system maintenance and testing

11. Ultra Violet Tanning Equipment Part 3 (3)
a) Records of tanning equipment maintenance and testing by competent engineer
b) Records of UV tube replacement
c) Records of alarm system maintenance and testing

12. Ultra Sonic Cleaner and Sterilisers Part 3 (4),  Part 3 (5) and Part 3 (7)
a) Copies of manufacturer’s and supplier’s instructions
b) Records of verification tests for ultrasonic cleaning equipment
c) Records of verification tests for autoclave sterilising equipment
d) Records of equipment maintenance and examination by competent engineer

13. Hepatitis B status Part 3 (4) and Part 3 (7)
a) Records of the Hepatitis status of each therapist

14. Fish Spa Manicure and Pedicure Part 3 (9)
a) Record of fish supply and mortality
b) Records of water quality and cleaning

15. Non surgical lasers/Intense Pulsed Light Part 3 (11)
a) Treatment Protocol document
b) Local Rules Document
c) LPA certification
d) Laser risk assessment
e) Copies of manufacturer’s and supplier’s instructions
f) Records of laser/IPL equipment maintenance and examination by competent engineer

Page 70



Page 71



Page 72

ka23_13
Typewritten Text
APPENDIX K



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



-----Original Message-----
From: Mary Poelzlbauer < > 
Sent: 04 April 2019 11:40
To: Cllr Morton David: H&F < >
Subject: Please refuse license renewal for Orients Spa at 10 April Committee 
Meeting

Dear David,

As a concerned resident and Secretary of Avonmore Residents Association, I would 
like to strongly object to renewal of the licence for:

Orients Spa
1 North End Road
W14 8ST

A number of my neighbours have raised concerns that they offer treatments of a 
sexual nature, so I carefully read the Licensing Sub-Committee Agenda relating to 
their license renewal.  The repeated failure to comply with the Council’s 
requirements indicate that Orients Spa are an irresponsible member of our 
community.  In addition to concerns about immoral behaviour, the fact that our 
Borough’s resources are being spent to investigate, send warning letters, and follow 
up with this non-compliant organisation is untenable. 

I look forward to your support on this matter.

Kind regards,

Mary Poelzlbauer

Palace Mansions
Earsby Street
London, 

Page 78

Agenda Item 4



From: Andy Auerbach < 
Sent: Friday, April 5, 2019 11:12 am
To: Cllr Smith Fiona: H&F; Cllr Harvey Rebecca M: H&F; Cllr Morton David: H&F
Subject: Licensing Sub-Committee Hearing, Wednesday 10th April 

Dear Councillors

Next week’s Licensing Sub-Committee is due to hear an application for the renewal of a Special 
Treatments license for Orients Spa on the North End Road. The Public Reports Pack on the case 
details repeated breaches of the license conditions and contains statements from council inspectors 
who confirm what many residents already suspected – that ‘Special Treatments’ is a cover for sexual 
services. In light of that I would strongly encourage the committee to vote NOT to renew the license 
of Orients Spa. Over the years residents and councillors have successfully challenged similar 
establishments – from the brothel on Avonmore Road to the strip club on North End Crescent – and I 
know this is a particularly emotive issue for local people, especially since this is an overwhelmingly 
family residential area and there are two schools within a hundred yards of the ‘spa’.

Best,

Andy Auerbach

Vice Chair, Avonmore Residents’ Association 

Avonmore Road

London

Page 79



From: Holly Larrett < 
Sent: Friday, April 5, 2019 12:44 pm
To: Cllr Harvey Rebecca M: H&F; Cllr Smith Fiona: H&F; Cllr Morton David: H&F
Subject: Orients Spa Massage Parlour - licensing committee decision 

Dear Ward Councillors, 

I am writing because I gather there is a hearing taking place next week to discuss whether or Orient 
Spa’s licence should be renewed. 

Having read the Public Reports Pack, it seems very clear that the employees of this massage parlour 
are offering ‘additional services’ of a sexual nature in addition to having breached the terms of their 
license in various other ways, 

In light of this, I very much hope that the license renewal request is rejected and wanted to express 
my view in writing. 

Kind regards, 

Holly Larrett 

Avonmore Road 
London 

Page 80



From: Patsy Heavey < 
Sent: Saturday, April 6, 2019 2:21 pm
To: Cllr Harvey Rebecca M: H&F; Cllr Smith Fiona: H&F; Cllr Morton David: H&F
Subject: Orients Spa Massage Parlour - licensing committee decision 

Dear Ward Councillors,

I am writing because I gather there is a hearing taking place next week to discuss whether or Orient 
Spa’s licence should be renewed.

Having read the Public Reports Pack, it seems very clear that the employees of this massage parlour 
are offering ‘additional services’ of a sexual nature in addition to having breached the terms of their 
license in various other ways,

In light of this, I very much hope that the license renewal request is rejected and wanted to express 
my view in writing.

Kind regards,

Patsy Heavey
Stonor Road
London

Page 81



-----Original Message-----
From: Ashdown Karen: H&F 
Sent: 05 April 2019 11:23
To: Francis Charles: H&F 
Cc: Perez-Trillo Cristina: H&F Omoregie Adesuwa: H&F <
Subject: RE: Please refuse license renewal for Orients Spa at 10 April Committee 
Meeting

Charles

Please circulate a supplementary agenda on Monday with the information from the 
residents. 

Additionally I have received two other items for inclusion in the supplementary 
agenda. 

1) A response has been received from London Fire Brigade.  They did not raise an 
objection but made the following  

"The premises referred to is not currently due for an inspection under the risk based 
re-inspection programme operated by this Authority.  The premises will be inspected 
in line with our risk based re-inspection programme at which time we will review the 
fire risk assessment as required for premises where a licence is in force under an 
enactment."

2) The Orients Spa receptionist, known as Mary, sent a text message to Karen 
Ashdown on 2nd April:
"I would like to inform you that I have left the Orients Spa and looking for a decent 
job.  Thank you and good days. Mary"

and another on 3rd April:
"Please may I clarify that I said 'temporary staff' not '10 staff'.  This is a 
misunderstanding.  Please could this be rectified? Please. The business owner 
thinks I have given serious wrong information to Council which caused them big 
troubles. Thank you very much"

If you require anything else, do let me know. 

Karen Ashdown
Environmental Health Officer
Regulatory Services

Page 82



From: ATTARD, JESSICA 
Sent: 28 March 2019 08:42
To: 'licensing@lbhf.gov.uk'
Subject: Hammersmith and Fulham Licensing - Orients Spa, 1 North End, London, W14 8ST

Dear Sir/Madam

FIRE AUTHORITY CONSULTATION

Premises: Orients Spa, 1 North End, London, W14 8ST

I refer to your recent application regarding the above-mentioned premises. The premises referred to 
is not currently due for an inspection under the risk based re-inspection programme operated by this 
Authority.

The premises will be inspected in line with our risk based re-inspection programme at which time we 
will review the fire risk assessment as required for premises where a licence is in force under an 
enactment.

If there are any specific fire safety matters about which you are concerned or you have any queries 
regarding this response, please send an email to FSR-AdminSupport@london-fire.gov.uk quoting our 
reference 11/082058/JA

Regards
London Fire Brigade
Fire Safety Regulation Admin
169 Union Street
London 
SE1 0LL

Page 83

mailto:FSR-AdminSupport@london-fire.gov.uk


-----Original Message-----
From: Ashdown Karen: H&F 
Sent: 05 April 2019 11:23
To: Francis Charles: H&F 
Cc: Perez-Trillo Cristina: H&F Omoregie Adesuwa: H&F <
Subject: RE: Please refuse license renewal for Orients Spa at 10 April Committee Meeting

Charles

Please circulate a supplementary agenda on Monday with the information from the residents. 

Additionally I have received two other items for inclusion in the supplementary agenda. 

1) A response has been received from London Fire Brigade.  They did not raise an objection but 
made the following  

"The premises referred to is not currently due for an inspection under the risk based re-inspection 
programme operated by this Authority.  The premises will be inspected in line with our risk based re-
inspection programme at which time we will review the fire risk assessment as required for premises 
where a licence is in force under an enactment."

2) The Orients Spa receptionist, known as Mary, sent a text message to Karen Ashdown on 2nd April:
"I would like to inform you that I have left the Orients Spa and looking for a decent job.  Thank you 
and good days. Mary"

and another on 3rd April:
"Please may I clarify that I said 'temporary staff' not '10 staff'.  This is a misunderstanding.  Please 
could this be rectified? Please. The business owner thinks I have given serious wrong information to 
Council which caused them big troubles. Thank you very much"

If you require anything else, do let me know. 

Karen Ashdown
Environmental Health Officer
Regulatory Services

Page 84



From: Cllr Harvey Rebecca M: H&F 
Sent: 08 April 2019 22:07
To: Licensing HF: H&F <licensing@lbhf.gov.uk>
Cc: Cllr Smith Fiona: H&F  
Subject: Orients Spa - objections

Dear Licensing team / Committee

I am emailing on behalf of residents living in Avonmore & Brooke Green, a number of 
them have contacted me concerned about the conduct of Orient Spa using their 
facilities for providing sexual services, and who are extremely concerned of this on 
the impact of the local community including being situated next to two schools, and 
requested that licensing permission is refused and not granted.  In light of their 
concerns I would support their objections to license being given to Orient Spa.  
Please can my email be added to the objections, many thanks  

Best wishes
Rebecca

Cllr. Rebecca Harvey

Labour
Councillor for Avonmore & Brook Green
The London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham
The Town Hall
King Street
London
W6 9 JU

Website: www.lbhf.gov.uk

Your other Councillors in Avonmore & Brook Green are Cllr David Morton and Cllr 
Fiona Smith. 

Page 85

mailto:licensing@lbhf.gov.uk
http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/

	Agenda
	3 Orients Spa 1 North End Road W14 8ST
	Appendix A Application form
	Appendix B Premises Plan
	Appendix C 2017-18 licence
	Appendix D warning letter
	Appendix E Warning letter
	Appendix F Exhibit DH.001
	Appendix F test purchase
	Appendix H Letter
	Appendix I LLAA91
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Appendix J Standard Conditions
	Appendix K Exhibit SN1
	Appendix K Witness statement SN

	4 Additional Information
	Fire Authority Email
	Email from Karen Ashdown
	Cllr Harvey information




